

ANNUAL REPORT

1 9 9 2 - 1 9 9 3

APPENDICES

ICPSR Annual Report, 1992–1993 Appendices

Table of Contents

Appendix A. Archivar Processing Activities	
Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1992–1993	3
Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1992–1993	4
Data Collections Released on Diskette, 1992–1993	12
Appendix B: Member Services Activities	
Volume of Data Distributed, 1992–1993	15
Appendix C: Educational Activities	
1992 Summer Program Courses and Instructors	25
Appendix D: Organization and Administration	
ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1992–1993	31
ICPSR Organizational Documents	
Constitution	37
Bylaws	39
Memorandum of Agreement	44

Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1992–1993
Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1992–1993
Data Collections Released on Diskette, 1992–1993

Intensively Processed Data Collections, 1992–1993

Data collections in this category have been checked, corrected if necessary, and formatted to ICPSR specifications. Also, the data may have been recoded and reorganized in consultation with the investigator to maximize their utilization and accessibility. A machine-readable codebook has been produced; this codebook fully documents the data and may include descriptive statistics such as frequencies or means. SPSS and SAS control statements have been prepared for most of these collections, and many are available in multiple technical formats. Some collections in this category have codebooks available in printed form, a copy of which is supplied routinely to each Official Representative.

Abrahamse, Allan F., Patricia A. Ebener, and Stephen P. Klein

Criminal Justice Outcomes of Male Offenders in 14 Jurisdictions in the United States, 1985–1988 (ICPSR 9671)
 14 files

Bachman, Jerald G., Lloyd D. Johnston, and Patrick M. O'Malley

■ Monitoring the Future: A Continuing Study of the Lifestyles and Values of Youth, 1990 (ICPSR 9745) 7 files

Booth, Alan, et al.

Marital Instability Over the Life Course [United States]: A Three-Wave Panel Study, 1980–1988 (ICPSR 9747)

Finkelhor, David, Gerald Hotaling, and Andrea Sedlak

 National Incidence Studies of Missing, Abducted, Runaway, and Thrownaway Children (NISMART), 1988 (ICPSR 9682) 9 files

Freedman, Ronald, and David Goldberg

■ Detroit Area Study, 1962: Family Growth in Detroit (ICPSR 7401) 1 file

Inglehart, Ronald, Karlheinz Reif, and Anna Melich

■ European Communities Studies, 1970–1989: Cumulative File (ICPSR 9361) 1 file

Jensen, Richard, Daniel Scott Smith, Mark W. Friedberger, Michel R. Dahlin, and Janice Reiff

- Old Age in the United States, 1880 (ICPSR 8427) 3 files
- Old Age in the United States, 1900 (ICPSR 8428) 1 file

Johnston, Lloyd D., Jerald G. Bachman, and Patrick M. O'Malley

Monitoring the Future: A Continuing Study of the Lifestyles and Values of Youth, 1991 (ICPSR 9871) 7 files

Kahn, Robert L., and Toni C. Antonucci

Social Networks in Adult Life, 1980: [United States] (ICPSR 9254) 2 files

Morgan, James N., Greg J. Duncan, Martha S. Hill, and James Lepkowski

■ Panel Study of Income Dynamics, 1968–1989 (ICPSR 7439) 2 releases: 6 files

Reif, Karlheinz, and Anna Melich

- Euro-Barometer 30: Immigrants and Out-Groups in Western Europe, October-November 1988 (ICPSR 9321) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 31: European Elections, 1989: Pre-Election Survey, March—April 1989 (ICPSR 9322) 1 file
- Euro-Barometer 31A: European Elections, 1989: Post-Election Survey, June–July 1989 (ICPSR 9360) 1 file

Roeder, Philip W.

■ Policy Research on Aging and Mental Health Services (PRAMHS) Project (ICPSR 9043) 4 files

United States Department of Justice. Bureau of Justice Statistics

- Capital Punishment in the United States, 1973–1990 (ICPSR 9819) 1 file
- Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System: Longitudinal File, 1971–1979, 1985, 1988 (ICPSR 7636) 1 file
- Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System [United States]: Extract File, 1989 (ICPSR 9773) 1 file
- Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System [United States]: Extract File, 1990 (ICPSR 6006) 1 file
- Law Enforcement Management and Administrative Statistics (LEMAS), 1990 (ICPSR 9749) 1 file
- National Corrections Reporting Program, 1988: [United States] (ICPSR 9450) 3 files

- National Crime Surveys: National Sample, 1986–1991 [Near-Term Data] (ICPSR 8864) 16 files
- Offender Based Transaction Statistics (OBTS), 1988: Alabama, Alaska, California, Delaware, Idaho, Kentucky, Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska, New Jersey, New York, Oregon, Pennsylvania, Utah, Vermont, and Virginia (ICPSR 9523) 1 file
- Survey of Youths in Custody, 1987: [United States] (ICPSR 8992) 1 file

United States Department of Justice. Federal Bureau of Investigation

- Uniform Crime Reporting Program Data: [United States] (ICPSR 9028) 2 releases: 5 files
- Uniform Crime Reporting Program Data [United States]: County-Level Detailed Arrest and Offense Data, 1990 (ICPSR 9785) 4 files

United States Department of Justice. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

 Census of Public and Private Juvenile Detention, Correctional, and Shelter Facilities, 1988–1989: [United States] (ICPSR 9445) 1 file

> 29 collections 95 files

Routinely Processed Data Collections, 1992–1993

These collections usually are made available only in the format provided by the principal investigator. The documentation for these studies may be machine-readable or may be reproduced from the material originally received. One copy of the documentation is supplied when the data are requested.

ABC News

- ABC News Angry Voter Poll, April 1992 (ICPSR 9942) 1 file
- ABC News Clinton Poll #1, January 1992 (ICPSR 9885) 1 file
- ABC News Democratic Convention Poll #2, July 1992 (ICPSR 9933) 1 file
- ABC News Democratic Convention Poll #3, July 1992 (ICPSR 9932) 1 file
- ABC News Perot Poll #1, July 1992 (ICPSR 9930) 1 file
- ABC News Perot Poll #2, July 1992 (ICPSR 9931) 1 file
- ABC News Politics Poll #1, March 1992 (ICPSR 9883) 1 file
- ABC News Politics Poll #2, March 1992 (ICPSR 9882) 1 file
- ABC News Women's Issues Poll, July 1992 (ICPSR 9936) 1 file

ABC News/NHK

■ ABC News/NHK Japan Poll, November 1991 (ICPSR 9889) 1 file

ABC News/Washington Post

- ABC News/Washington Post Democratic Delegate Poll, July 1992 (ICPSR 9935) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Los Angeles Beating Poll, April 1992 (ICPSR 9941) 1 file
 ABC News/Washington Post Poll, June 1992 (ICPSR 9939) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, July 1992 (ICPSR 9934) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Poll, December 1992 (ICPSR 6026) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Race Relations Poll, May 1992 (ICPSR 9940) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post State of the Union Poll, January 1992 (ICPSR 9884) 1 file
- ABC News/Washington Post Super Bowl Poll, January 1992 (ICPSR 9888) 1 file

Abt Associates, Inc.

■ Federal Justice Statistics Program Data, 1978–1991: [United States] (ICPSR 9296) 14 files

Allerbeck, Klaus, et al.

German Social Survey (ALLBUS) Cumulative File, 1980–1990 (ICPSR 6101) 1 file

Azar, Edward E.

Conflict and Peace Data Bank (COPDAB), 1948–1978 (ICPSR 7767) 1 file

Brecher, Michael, and Jonathan Wilkenfeld

■ International Crisis Behavior Project, 1918–1988 (ICPSR 9286) 2 files

Britt, Chester L. III, Michael R. Gottfredson, and John Goldkamp

■ Evaluation of Arizona Pretrial Services Drug Testing Programs, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9807) 6 files

CBS News

■ CBS News Polling America, March 17–19, 1991 (ICPSR 9865) 1 file

CBS News/The New York Times

- CBS News/New York Times Health Care Poll, August 18–22, 1991 (ICPSR 9862) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times National Survey, May 7–8, 1991 (ICPSR 9864) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times National Survey, June 3–6, 1991 (ICPSR 9863) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times October Foreign Policy/Congressional Scandal Poll, October 5–7, 1991 (ICPSR 9803) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times October Politics Survey, October 15–17, 1991 (ICPSR 9801) 1 file
- CBS News/New York Times Overnight Union of Soviet Socialist Republics (USSR) Survey, August 20, 1991 (ICPSR 9804) 1 file

CBS News/The New York Times/Turner Broadcasting System

■ CBS News/New York Times/Turner Broadcasting System Japan Poll, November 18–21, 1991 (ICPSR 9860) 1 file

Canan, Penelope, and George W. Pring

Strategic Lawsuits Against Public Participation (SLAPPs), 1987–1990: [United States] (ICPSR 9485) 4 files

Center for Human Resource Research. The Ohio State University

■ National Longitudinal Surveys of Labor Market Experience, 1966–1991 (ICPSR 7610) 3 releases: 131 files

Centro de Investigaciones Sobre la Realidad Social (CIRES)

- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, February 1991: The Use of Time (ICPSR 9891) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, March 1991: Attitudes Toward Immigrants (ICPSR 9892)
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, April 1991: Social Inequalities Based on Sex and Age (ICPSR 9893) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, May 1991: Education and Social Mobility (ICPSR 9894) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, June 1991: Political Culture (ICPSR 9895) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, July 1991: Economic Attitudes and Behavior (ICPSR 9896) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, October 1991: Life Styles (ICPSR 9897) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, November 1991: Religiosity and Social Ethics (ICPSR 9898) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, December 1991: Drugs As a Social Problem (ICPSR 9899) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, January 1992: Supranational Identification (ICPSR 9994) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, February 1992: Attitudes Toward Science and Technology (ICPSR 9993) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, March 1992: Attitudes Toward Immigrants (ICPSR 9996) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, April 1992: Justice and Civic Rights (ICPSR 9992)
 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, May 1992: Old Age (ICPSR 9997) 1 file
- Center for Research on Social Reality [Spain] Survey, June 1992: Political and Economic Culture (ICPSR 9995) 1 file

Clarke, Harold D., and Allan Kornberg

■ Political Support in Canada, 1983–1988 (ICPSR 9874) 4 files

Czaja, Ronald, and Johnny Blair

Evaluating Network Sampling in Victimization Surveys in Peoria, Illinois, 1986 (ICPSR 9968) 1 file

DaVanzo, Julie, and John Haaga

Second Malaysian Family Life Survey: 1988 Interviews (ICPSR 9805) 96 files

Davis, James A., and Tom W. Smith

General Social Surveys, 1972–1991: [Cumulative File Supplement, 1992] (ICPSR 9967) 1 file

Dietz, Park Elliot, and Daniel A. Martell

Mentally Disordered Offenders in Pursuit of Celebrities and Politicians (ICPSR 6007) 2 files

Doan, David, and Bronston T. Mayes

■ Automated Reporting System Pilot Project in Los Angeles, 1990 (ICPSR 9969) 6 files

Dunworth, Terence, and Aaron J. Saiger

 State Strategic Planning Under the Drug Control and System Improvement Formula Grant Program in the United States, 1990 (ICPSR 9748) 2 files

Economic Behavior Program. Survey Research Center. University of Michigan

- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, January 1990 (ICPSR 9647) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, February 1990 (ICPSR 9648) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, March 1990 (ICPSR 9649) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, April 1990 (ICPSR 9650) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, May 1990 (ICPSR 9651) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, June 1990 (ICPSR 9652) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, July 1990 (ICPSR 9653) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, August 1990 (ICPSR 9654) 1 file
 Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, September 1990 (ICPSR 9655) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, October 1990 (ICPSR 9656) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, October 1990 (ICPSR 9656) 1 file
 Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, November 1990 (ICPSR 9657) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Attitudes and Behavior, December 1990 (ICPSR 9658) 1 file
- Survey of Consumer Finances, 1977 (ICPSR 9752) 1 file

Economic Behavior Program. Survey Research Center. University of Michigan, and Robert B. Avery, Gregory E. Elliehausen, and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

■ Survey of Consumer Finances, 1983 (ICPSR 9751) 2 files

Economic Behavior Program. Survey Research Center. University of Michigan, and Robert B. Avery, Arthur B. Kennickell, and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

Survey of Consumer Finances, 1986 (ICPSR 9753) 2 files

Edleson, Jeffrey L., and Maryann Syers

■ Minneapolis Intervention Project, 1986–1987 (ICPSR 9808) 1 file

Elliott, Delbert

■ National Youth Survey [United States]: Wave VI, 1983 (ICPSR 9948) 1 file

Fagan, Jeffrey, Steven Belenko, and Bruce D. Johnson

 Changing Patterns of Drug Abuse and Criminality Among Crack Cocaine Users in New York City: Criminal Histories and Criminal Justice System Processing, 1983–1984, 1986 (ICPSR 9790) 1 file

Federal Election Commission

- Campaign Expenditures in the United States, 1989–1990: Freedom of Information Act (FOIA) Data (ICPSR 9775) 4 files
- Campaign Expenditures in the United States, 1989–1990: Reports on Financial Activity (RFA) Data (ICPSR 9828) 6 files

Federal Judicial Center

■ Federal Court Cases: Integrated Data Base, 1970–1991 (ICPSR 8429) 2 releases: 28 files

Figlio, Robert M., Paul E. Tracy, and Marvin E. Wolfgang

Delinquency in a Birth Cohort II: Philadelphia, 1958–1988 (ICPSR 9293) 1 file

Fogel, Robert W.

■ Occupational Data From the 1860 United States Census (ICPSR 9873) 1 file

Geiselman, R. Edward, Karen J. Saywitz, and Gail K. Bornstein

 Effects of Cognitive Interviewing, Practice, and Interview Style on Children's Recall Performance in California, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 9789) 1 file

Glaser, Daniel, and Margaret A. Gordon

 Use and Effectiveness of Fines, Jail, and Probation in Municipal Courts in Los Angeles County, 1981–1984 (ICPSR 9742) 1 file

Goldkamp, John S., Michael R. Gottfredson, and Doris Weiland

■ Effects of Drug Testing on Defendant Risk in Dade County, Florida, 1987 (ICPSR 9791) 1 file

Great Britain Home Office Research and Planning Unit

■ British Crime Survey, 1988 (ICPSR 9850) 5 files

Griffin, Keith, and Zhao Renwei

■ Chinese Household Income Project, 1988 (ICPSR 9836) 4 files

Gross, Ruth T., et al.

Infant Health and Development Program (IHDP): Enhancing the Outcomes of Low Birth Weight, Premature Infants in the United States, 1985–1988 (ICPSR 9795) 70 files

Hirsch, Ronald L.

National Survey of Lawyers' Career Satisfaction, Wave I, 1984, and Wave II, 1990 (ICPSR 8975) 1 file

International Monetary Fund (IMF)

- Balance of Payments Statistics (ICPSR 8623) 6 files
- Direction of Trade (ICPSR 7628) 6 files
- Government Finance Statistics (ICPSR 8624) 6 files

International Social Survey Program (ISSP)

- International Social Survey Program: Work Orientations, 1989 (ICPSR 9784) 1 file
- International Social Survey Program: Role of Government II, 1990 (ICPSR 6010) 1 file

Kennickell, Arthur, and the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

■ Survey of Consumer Finances, 1989 (ICPSR 9687) 1 file

Knoke, David, and Naomi J. Kaufman

Social Organization of the United States National Labor Policy Domain, 1981–1987 (ICPSR 9802) 8 files

McCarthy, Jack, D. Randall Smith, and William R. Smith

■ Effects of Sentences on Subsequent Criminal Behavior in New Jersey, 1976–1977 (ICPSR 8986) 2 files

Miller, Warren E., Donald R. Kinder, Steven J. Rosenstone, and the National Election Studies

- American National Election Study: Pooled Senate Election Study, 1988, 1990, 1992 (ICPSR 9580) 1 file
- American National Election Study, 1992: Pre- and Post-Election Survey (ICPSR 6067) 1 file

Mohler, Peter Ph., Michael Braun, Erwin K. Scheuch, and Michael Hader

■ German Social Survey (ALLBUS), 1991 (ICPSR 9832) 1 file

National Cancer Institute

Cancer Surveillance and Epidemiology in the United States and Puerto Rico, 1973–1977 (ICPSR 8001) 1 file

Owen, Thomas C.

■ RUSCORP: A Database of Corporations in the Russian Empire, 1700–1914 (ICPSR 9142) 52 files

Pate, Antony, and Sampson Annan

Reducing Fear of Crime: Program Evaluation Surveys in Newark and Houston, 1983–1984 (ICPSR 8496) 6 files

Pearson, Frederic S., and Robert A. Baumann

International Military Intervention, 1946–1988 (ICPSR 6035) 1 file

Petersilia, Joan, Allan F. Abrahamse, Patricia A. Ebener, and Peter W. Greenwood

Evaluation of a Repeat Offender Unit in Phoenix, Arizona, 1987–1989 (ICPSR 9793) 1 file

Portes, Alejandro

Adaptation Process of Cuban (Mariel) and Haitian Refugees in South Florida, 1983–1987 (ICPSR 9750) 2 files

Rees, Albert, and Sharon P. Smith

 Faculty Retirement in the Arts and Sciences: Source Data for 33 United States Colleges and Universities, 1985–1990 (ICPSR 9818) 2 files

Reif, Karlheinz, and Anna Melich

Euro-Barometer 37.0: Awareness and Importance of Maastricht and the Future of the European Community, March-April 1992 (ICPSR 9847) 1 file

Robinson, John

■ Americans' Use of Time, 1985 (ICPSR 9875) 1 file

Roehner, Bertrand

■ Wheat Trade and Wheat Prices in France, 1486–1913 (ICPSR 9777) 3 files

Rosenthal, Howard L., and Keith T. Poole

United States Congressional Roll Call Voting Records, 1789–1987: Reformatted Data (ICPSR 9822) 99 files

Runyan, Desmond K., Mark D. Everson, Wanda M. Hunter, and Nancy M.P. King

■ Impact of the Court Process on Sexually Abused Children in North Carolina, 1983–1986 (ICPSR 9985) 1 file

Schuman, Howard, and Vladas Gaidys

■ Collective Memory in Lithuania, 1989 (ICPSR 9960) 1 file

Schuman, Howard, and Stanley Presser

■ Experiments in Question Wording, Form and Context in Attitude Surveys, 1971–1980 (ICPSR 7940) 1 file

Schuman, Howard, and Cheryl Rieger

 Historical Analogies, Generational Effects, and Attitudes Toward War in the United States, October 1990– February 1991 (ICPSR 9959) 1 file

Seron, Carroll

Survey of Lawyers in the Metropolitan New York Media Market, 1989 (ICPSR 9823) 1 file

Sherman, Lawrence W., Patrick R. Gartin, and Michael E. Buerger

■ Repeat Complaint Address Policing: Two Field Experiments in Minneapolis, 1985–1987 (ICPSR 9788) 2 files

Singer, J. David, and Melvin Small

■ National Material Capabilities Data, 1816–1985 (ICPSR 9903) 1 file

Slocum, Terry A.

■ Comparison of Methods for Learning Choropleth Maps [1988–1990: United States] (ICPSR 9759) 4 files

Spaeth, Harold J.

United States Supreme Court Judicial Database, 1953–1991 Terms (ICPSR 9422) 2 releases: 2 files

Spergel, Irving A., and G. David Curry

National Youth Gang Intervention and Suppression Survey, 1980–1987 (ICPSR 9792) 5 files

Steadman, Henry J., Pamela Clark Robbins, and Carmen Cirincione

■ Mental Disorder and Violent Crime: A 20-Year Cohort Study in New York State, 1968–1988 (ICPSR 9978) 1 file

Sylla, Richard E., John B. Legler, and John Wallis

Sources and Uses of Funds in State and Local Governments, 1790–1915: [United States] (ICPSR 9728) 64 files

Taylor, Charles Lewis, and Joachim Amm

■ National Capability Data: Annual Series, 1950–1988 (ICPSR 9904) 16 files

Taylor, James O., Robert B. Wallace, and Adrian M. Ostfeld

 Established Populations for Epidemiologic Studies of the Elderly, 1981–1983: [lowa and Washington Counties, lowa, East Boston, and New Haven] (ICPSR 9915) 1 file

Tecumseh Management Committee

■ Tecumseh Mortality Follow-Up Study, 1978 (ICPSR 9900) 1 file

Thornton, Arland, and Deborah Freedman

Intergenerational Study of Parents and Children, 1962–1985: [Detroit] (ICPSR 9902) 6 files

Toborg, Mary, Anthony Yezer, and John Bellassai

Evaluation of Adult Urine Testing/Drug Use Surveillance Project in Washington, DC, 1984–1986 (ICPSR 9947)
 1 file

United States Department of Commerce. Bureau of the Census

- American Housing Survey, 1989: MSA Core File (ICPSR 9815) 11 files
- American Housing Survey, 1989: National File (ICPSR 9857) 1 file
- American Housing Survey, 1990: MSA Core Questions File (ICPSR 6003) 11 files

- Annual Survey of Governments, 1989: Employment Statistics (ICPSR 9953) 1 file
- Annual Survey of Governments, 1990: Employment Statistics (ICPSR 9794) 1 file
- Annual Survey of Governments, 1990: Finance Statistics (ICPSR 9856) 2 files
- Annual Survey of Governments, 1991: Employment Statistics (ICPSR 6004) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) File (ICPSR 9929) 52 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Modified Age/Race, Sex, and Hispanic Origin (MARS)
 State and County File (ICPSR 9878) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 5-Percent Sample (ICPSR 9952) 30 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 1C (ICPSR 9834) 1 file
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 2A (ICPSR 9770)
 2 releases: 20 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 2B (ICPSR 9848)
 3 releases: 51 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Summary Tape File 3A (ICPSR 9782).
 3 releases: 50 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: TIGER/Census Tract Comparability File (ICPSR 9810)
 2 files
- Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: TIGER/Census Tract Street Index File (Version 1) (ICPSR 9787) 550 files
- Consolidated Federal Funds Report (CFFR), Fiscal Year 1991 (ICPSR 9872) 3 files
- Contiguous County File, 1991: [United States] (ICPSR 9835) 1 file
- County Business Patterns, 1990 [United States]: U.S. Summary, State, and County Data (ICPSR 6030) 11 files
- County Statistics File 4 (CO-STAT 4): [United States] (ICPSR 9806) 1 file
- Current Population Survey: Annual Demographic File, 1992 (ICPSR 9927) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, May 1991: Multiple Job Holding and Work Schedules (ICPSR 9809) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, October 1977: School Enrollment (ICPSR 9538) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, October 1990: School Enrollment (ICPSR 9776) 1 file
- Current Population Survey, January 1992: Displaced Workers (ICPSR 6033) 1 file
- Geographic Reference File—Names, 1990 (Census Version): [United States] (ICPSR 9731) 1 file
- Revised Estimates of the Population of Counties by Age, Sex, and Race [United States]: 1980–1989 (ICPSR 6031) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1988 Full Panel Research File (ICPSR 6028) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1988 Panel (ICPSR 9568) 1 file
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1990 Panel (ICPSR 9722) 2 releases: 3 files
- Survey of Income and Program Participation (SIPP) 1991 Panel (ICPSR 9855) 2 releases: 4 files

United States Department of Education. National Center for Education Statistics

- High School and Beyond, 1980: Sophomore and Senior Cohort Third Follow-Up (1986) (ICPSR 8896) 4 files
- Integrated Postsecondary Education Data System (IPEDS): Earned Degrees, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 9858) 1 file
- National Education Longitudinal Study, 1988: First Follow-Up (1990) (ICPSR 9859) 2 releases: 2 files
- National Household Education Survey, 1991 (ICPSR 9877) 4 files
- National Longitudinal Study of the Class of 1972 (ICPSR 8085) 4 files
- Schools and Staffing Survey, 1987–1988: [United States] (ICPSR 9846) 4 files

United States Department of Health and Human Services. Agency for Health Care Policy and Research

- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Ambulatory Medical Visit Data [Public Use Tape 14.5] (ICPSR 9881) 3 files
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Household Survey, Data on Home Health Care and Medical Equipment Purchases and Rentals [Public Use Tape 14.2] (ICPSR 9944) 2 files
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Household Survey, Dental Visit Data [Public Use Tape 14.3] (ICPSR 9814) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Household Survey, Hospital Stays Data [Public Use Tape 14.4] (ICPSR 9840) 1 file
- National Medical Expenditure Survey, 1987: Policyholders of Private Insurance: Premiums, Payment Sources, and Types and Source of Coverage [Public Use Tape 15] (ICPSR 9901) 2 files

United States Department of Health and Human Services. National Center for Health Statistics

- Hispanic Health and Nutrition Examination Survey, 1982–1984 (ICPSR 8535) 3 files
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1982 (ICPSR 9880) 1 file
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1983 (ICPSR 9879) 1 file
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1984 (ICPSR 9811) 1 file
- Multiple Cause of Death, 1985 (ICPSR 9812) 1 file
- National Ambulatory Medical Care Survey, 1989 (ICPSR 9830) 1 file

- National Ambulatory Medical Care Survey, 1990 (ICPSR 9831) 1 file
- National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey I: Epidemiologic Followup Study, 1982–1984 (ICPSR 8900)
 1 file
- National Health and Nutrition Examination Survey I: Epidemiologic Follow-Up Study, 1987 (ICPSR 9854)
 4 files
- National Health Interview Survey, 1969 (ICPSR 9800) 5 files
- National Health Interview Survey, 1973: Prescribed Medicine Supplement (ICPSR 9799) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1974: Currently Employed Supplement (ICPSR 9798) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1974: Hypertension Supplement (ICPSR 9796) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1975: Medical Care Supplement (ICPSR 9797) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1984: Supplement on Aging, Multiple Cause of Death, 1984–1989 (ICPSR 9906) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1988: Occupational Health Supplement (ICPSR 6047) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1989: Diabetes Supplement (ICPSR 6048) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1989: Mental Health Supplement (ICPSR 9403) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990 (ICPSR 9839) 5 files
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: AIDS Knowledge and Attitudes Supplement (ICPSR 9909) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: Health Promotion and Disease Prevention (HPDP) Injury Control and Child Safety and Health Supplement (ICPSR 9911) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: Health Promotion and Disease Prevention (HPDP) Pregnancy and Smoking Supplement (ICPSR 9912) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: Health Promotion and Disease Prevention (HPDP) Sample Person Supplement (ICPSR 9914) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: Hearing Supplement (ICPSR 9910) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1990: Podiatry Supplement (ICPSR 9913) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991 (ICPSR 6049) 5 files
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: AIDS Knowledge and Attitudes Supplement (ICPSR 6050) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: Child Health Supplement (ICPSR 6052) 1 file
- National Health Interview Survey, 1991: Environmental Health Supplement (ICPSR 6051) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1973 (ICPSR 9827) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1975 (ICPSR 9826) 1 file
- National Hospital Discharge Survey, 1976 (ICPSR 9825) 1 file
- National Nursing Home Survey Follow-Up: Wave I, 1987 (ICPSR 9813) 1 file
- National Nursing Home Survey Follow-Up: Wave II, 1988 (ICPSR 9838) 1 file

United States Department of Health and Human Services. National Institute on Drug Abuse

National Household Survey on Drug Abuse, 1990 (ICPSR 9833) 2 releases: 2 files

United States Department of Justice. Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention

■ Study of Tribal and Alaska Native Juvenile Justice Systems in the United States, 1990 (ICPSR 9772) 2 files

United States Department of Labor. Bureau of Labor Statistics

- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1988: Interview Survey, Detailed Expenditure Files (ICPSR 9842) 54 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1989: Interview Survey, Detailed Expenditure Files (ICPSR 9841) 54 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1990: Diary Survey (ICPSR 9821) 16 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1990: Interview Survey (ICPSR 9820) 25 files
- Consumer Expenditure Survey, 1990: Interview Survey, Detailed Expenditure Files (ICPSR 9817) 54 files

United States Department of Transportation. Federal Highway Administration

Nationwide Personal Transportation Survey, 1990: [United States] (ICPSR 9816) 6 files

United States Office of Personnel Management

Survey of Federal Government Employees, November 1991–February 1992 [United States] (ICPSR 9983) 1 file

United States Sentencing Commission

- Impact of Sentencing Guidelines on the Use of Incarceration in Federal Criminal Courts in the United States, 1984– 1990 (ICPSR 9845) 1 file
- Monitoring of Federal Criminal Sentences, 1987–1991 (ICPSR 9317) 1 file
- National Survey of Judges and Court Practitioners, 1991 (ICPSR 9837) 1 file
- Prosecutorial Discretion and Plea Bargaining in Federal Criminal Courts in the United States, 1983–1990 (ICPSR 9844) 1 file
- United States Federal Mandatory Minimum Statutes Study, 1989–1990 (ICPSR 6009) 1 file

Voter Research and Surveys

- Voter Research and Surveys Presidential Primary Exit Polls, 1992 (ICPSR 9852) 57 files
- Voter Research and Surveys General Election Exit Polls, 1992 (ICPSR 6102) 52 files

WABC-TV

■ WABC-TV New York State Primary Poll, March 1992 (ICPSR 9943) 1 file

WABC-TV/Newsday

■ WABC-TV/Newsday New York State Poll #2, June 1992 (ICPSR 9937) 1 file

WCBS-TV News/The New York Times

■ WCBS-TV News/New York Times New York City and Suburban Poll, November 1991 (ICPSR 9861) 1 file

Washington Post

- Washington Post District of Columbia Politics Poll, February 1992 (ICPSR 9886) 1 file
- Washington Post Weekend Leisure Poll, June 1992 (ICPSR 9938) 1 file

Wish, Eric D.

■ Drug Abuse As a Predictor of Rearrest or Failure to Appear in Court in New York City, 1984 (ICPSR 9979) 1 file

World Bank. Debt and International Finance Division

■ World Debt Tables, 1970–1991 (ICPSR 8313) 1 file

Zimmerman, William, and Michael Berbaum

■ Soviet Military-Civilian Interview Project, 1983–1987 (ICPSR 9584) 1 file

237 collections 1,999 files

Data Collections Released on Diskette, 1992–1993

National Survey of Black Americans, 1979–1980 (ICPSR 8512). Card Image data, documentation, SPSS control cards [Diskettes D00026–D00027]

Expenditure and Employment Data for the Criminal Justice System: Individual Units File and Estimates File, 1988 (ICPSR 9446). Card Image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskettes D00028–D00030]

United States Congressional Roll Call Voting Records, 1789–1987: Reformatted Data (ICPSR 9822). Logical Record Length data, documentation [Diskettes D00034–D00039]

Race of Prisoners Admitted to State and Federal Institutions in the United States, 1926–1986 (ICPSR 9165). Card Image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskette D00040]

National Crime Surveys: Crime School Supplement, 1989 (ICPSR 9394). Logical Record Length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskette D00041]

Bibliographic Citations for All Released ICPSR Data Collections: 1962–September 30, 1992 [3rd Version, October 1992] (ICPSR 4001). [Diskette D00042]

Domestic Violence Experience in Omaha, Nebraska, 1986–1987 (ICPSR 9481). Card Image data, documentation [Diskette D00043]

Child Abuse, Neglect, and Violent Criminal Behavior in a Midwest Metropolitan Area of the United States, 1967–1988 (ICPSR 9480). Card Image data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskette D00047]

Capital Punishment in the United States, 1973–1990 (ICPSR 9819). Logical Record Length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskette D00048]

Euro-Barometer 30: Immigrants and Outgroups in Western Europe, October-November 1988 (ICPSR 9321). Card Image data, documentation, SPSS control cards [Diskettes D00049-D00051]

Law Enforcement Management and Administrative Statistics (LEMAS), 1990 (ICPSR 9749). Logical Record Length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskette D00052]

Euro-Barometer 31: European Elections, 1989: Pre-Election Survey, March—April 1989 (ICPSR 9322). Card Image data, documentation, SPSS control cards [Diskettes D00053–D00054]

National Health Interview Survey: Longitudinal Study of Aging, 70 Years and Over, 1984–1990 (ICPSR 8719). Logical Record Length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskettes D00055–D00057]

Census of Population and Housing, 1990 [United States]: Public Use Microdata Sample: 5-Percent Sample [Geographic Equivalency File] (ICPSR 9952). Documentation [Diskette D00058]

Survey of Youths in Custody, 1987: [United States] (ICPSR 8992). Logical Record Length data, documentation, SAS and SPSS control cards [Diskette D00060]

Summer Program in Quantitative Methods: 1992 Bibliography (ICPSR 4002). Machine-readable ASCII version of the printed volume [Diskette D00061]

American National Election Study, 1992: Pre- and Post-Election Survey [CPS Early Release] (ICPSR 6067). Logical Record Length data and OSIRIS Type 5 Dictionary [Diskette D00063]

American National Election Study, 1992: Pre- and Post-Election Survey [CPS Early Release] (ICPSR 6067). Documentation files in WordPerfect 5.1 format [Diskette D00064]

American National Election Study: Pooled Senate Election Study, 1988, 1990, 1992 (ICPSR 9580). Documentation files in WordPerfect 5.1 format [Diskette D00065]

18 new collections on diskette

Volume of Data Distributed, 1992-1993

Volume of Data Distributed, 1992-1993

The tables on the following pages tabulate all requests for data and related services during fiscal year 1992–1993. Note that a zero in the last column indicates that textual material was supplied. Also, an "M" in the first column of the table indicates a member institution, while "NM" in that column indicates a nonmember.

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	Age Wave, Inc.	1	0
	Emeryville, California		-
М	The University of Akron	99	2564.32
M	University of Alabama at Birmingham	16	362.96
М	University of Alabama at Tuscaloosa	490	5974.56
M	University of South Alabama	21	1327.36
M	University of Alberta	34	134.80
M	Alfred University	7	50.16
NM	Ambassador Book Service, Inc.	1	0
NM	Hempstead, New York American Association of Retired Persons	3	719.36
	Washington, DC		
M	The American University	640	10866.00
M	Appalachian State University	32	997.04
M	Arizona State University	233	111 <i>7.</i> 84
M	Northern Arizona University	11	9 <i>7</i> .20
M	University of Arizona	410	1854.80
M	Arkansas State University	44	367.52
M	University of Arkansas at Fayetteville	34	3114.64
M	University of Arkansas at Little Rock	2	192.32
M	Associated Colleges of the Midwest	168	2109.44
M	Auburn University at Auburn	80	5204.80
M	Australian Consortium for Social and Political Research, In-	c. 210	3924.40
NM	Abt Associates, Inc.	3	18.24
	Cambridge, Massachusetts		
NM	Baker & Taylor Books	5	0
	Momence, Illinois		
NM	Baldwin-Wallace College	45	614.08
	Berea, Ohio		
M	Bates College	81	2752.56
NM	Bestinfo, Inc.	1	40.80
	Radnor, Pennsylvania		
NM	Blackwell North America, Inc.	2	0
	Blackwell, New Jersey		
M	Bloomsburg University	14	1315.84
M	Boise State University	5 <i>7</i>	588.48
NM	The Book House, Inc.	3	0
	Jonesville, Michigan		
M	Boston College	15	438.40
M	Bowdoin College	24	2018.48
M	Bowling Green State University	119	2269.36
NM	Bradley University Peoria, Illinois	51	44.16
М	Brandeis University	44	715.60
М	Brigham Young University	229	184.96
M	University of British Columbia	106	3720.72
M	British National Federation	176	5893.76
M	The Brookings Institution	35	2089.28
M	Brown University	96	2501.28
	CBS News	1	0
	New York, New York		_

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	CEPS/INSTEAD	1	0
NA	Walferdange, Luxembourg California State University at San Marcos	1	.24
I AIA I	San Marcos, California	'	.24
М	California State University Federation	610	14198.48
М	University of California at Berkeley	163	3782.72
M	University of California at Davis	138	4232.00
M	University of California at Irvine	128	5984.88
M	University of California at Los Angeles	337	12493.44
M	University of California at Riverside	348	5607.04
M	University of California at San Diego	133	3411.60
М М	University of California at Santa Barbara University of California at Santa Cruz	705 143	4042.64 2952.64
Ň	University of Calgary	28	498.88
	Canadian Security Intelligence Service	1	0
	Ottawa, Ontario, Canada	•	· ·
NM	Universidad Carlos III de Madrid	1	.72
. 4	Madrid, Spain	200	12206 72
M M	Carnegie-Mellon University	288	12306.72
vı M	Case Western Reserve University The Catholic University of America	407 66	2432.56 535.52
	Centers for Disease Control	143	49.60
	Atlanta, Georgia	1 43	43.00
	Central College	1	0
	Pella, lowa	•	610.61
	Central Michigan University	2	618.64
	Charleton Research Company San Francisco, California	1	0
	Chicago Academy of Sciences	53	233.36
M	Chicago Consortium of Colleges and Universities Skokie, Illinois	1	0
	University of Chicago	343	10888.56
	Christopher Newport University	96	4915.76
	University of Cincinnati	231	4003.44
	City University of New York Federation	675	7844.40
	The Claremont Colleges	105	3521.68
	Clemson University	363	5732.24
	Cleveland State University	<i>7</i> 5	650.96
	Colby College	8	12.32
	Colgate University University of Colorado at Boulder	148 47	830.56 1367.68
M	University of Colorado at Denver	1	2.32
	Columbia University	295	4735.52
M	Congressional Budget Office Washington, DC	1	618.64
	University of Connecticut	167	4445.44
M	Coopers & Lybrand Milwaukee, Wisconsin	21	379.20
	Cornell Federation	411	8654.00
	Coutts Library Services Inc. Niagara Falls, New York	2	0
Л	Dartmouth College	747	16318.88
	Davidson College	2	1133.36
	University of Delaware	99	2334.48
	DePaul University	107	1917.04
	Drake University Duke University	9 33 7	89.84 11921.20
	Dutch National Membership	337 80	1397.12
	East Carolina University	27	220.96
	Eastern Michigan University	11	253.92

M European University Institute 9 342.1 NM The Federal Judicial Center 17 508.4 Washington, DC 375.5 NM Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas 5 375.5 Dallas, Texas 2 671.2 NM Federal Reserve Board 2 671.2 Washington, DC 6 10.0 10244.2 M Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Fordham University 6 31.2 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 80 2277.4 M George Washington University 80 2277.4 M	48 92 20 24 48 88 92 94 60 94 96 98
NM The Federal Judicial Center Washington, DC 17 508.4 Washington, DC NM Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas 5 375.9 Dallas, Texas NM Federal Reserve Board Washington, DC 2 671.2 Washington, DC M Florida Consortium for Political Research 710 10244.2 Septical Septica	48 92 20 24 48 88 92 94 60 94 96 98
Washington, DC NM Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas Dallas, Texas 5 375.9 NM Federal Reserve Board Washington, DC 2 671.2 Washington, DC 710 10244.2 M Florida Consortium for Political Research 710 10244.2 M Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 6 443.4 M Ceorge Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M George Washington University 580 2277.4 M George Washington University 82 3749.3 M George Washington University 80 2277.4 M George Washington University 80 2277.4 M George Washington University 82 3749.3 M George Washington University 80 2277.4 M George Washington University 80 2277.4 M Georga State University 80 2276.1	20 24 18 18 12 14 60 14 16 16 18
Dallas, Texas 2 671.2 NM Federal Reserve Board Washington, DC 2 671.2 M Florida Consortium for Political Research Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Franklin and Marshall College G 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 8 2082.1 M George Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M German National Federation 65 261.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 4 Baltimore, Maryland 4 15 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 39.4 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49	20 24 18 18 12 14 60 14 16 16 18
NM Federal Reserve Board Washington, DC 2 671.2 Washington, DC M Florida Consortium for Political Research 710 10244.2 M Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 6 443.4 M George Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 580 2277.4 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M Gertysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Gettysburg College 2 4 Baltimore, Maryland 1 103 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M University of Hawaii	24 18 18 12 14 6 6 14 6 16 18
Washington, DC M Florida Consortium for Political Research 710 10244.2 M Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 6 443.4 M George Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M George State University 580 2277.4 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M German National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 M Goucher College 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland 15 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Homaki at Manoa 49 27.0	24 18 18 12 14 6 6 14 6 16 18
M Florida Consortium for Political Research 710 10244.2 M Fordham University 54 5030.4 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M George Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M George Washington University 580 2277.4 M George Washington University 82 3749.3 M George Washington University 82 3749.3 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M Gerega State University 82 3749.3 M University of College 2 2 N Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 N Goucher College 2 2 Baltimore, Maryland 15	88 12 14 60 14 66 88
M Franklin and Marshall College 6 31.2 M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 6 443.4 M George Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M George Washington University 580 2277.4 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M German National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 4 Baltimore, Maryland 15 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 <td< td=""><td>88 12 14 60 14 16 88</td></td<>	88 12 14 60 14 16 88
M Furman University 8 137.9 M Gallaudet University 6 443.4 M George Masson University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M George Washington University 580 2277.4 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M German National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland 3306.8 3306.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Harward University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 NM Thead and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 <td>22 14 6 30 44 66</td>	22 14 6 30 44 66
M Gallaudet University 6 443.4 M George Mason University 84 2082.1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M Georgetown University 580 2277.4 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M Cerman National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland 3306.8 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 NM T. Head and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 Herndon, Virginia 3 58.7 M	6 6 6 4 6 8
M George Mason University 84 2082:1 M George Washington University 34 480.8 M Georgetown University 580 2277.4 M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M German National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland 3306.8 39.4 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Houston 377 3994.0	6 30 4 6 8
M George Washington University M Georgetown University M Georgia State University M Georgia State University M University of Georgia M University of Georgia M German National Federation M Gettysburg College M Goucher College Baltimore, Maryland M University of Guelph M University of Guelph M University of Guelph M University of Hartford M Hartwick College M Hartwick College M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hong Kong M University of Hon	80 4 6 8
M Georgia State University 82 3749.3 M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M German National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 NM T. Head and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 Herndon, Virginia 49 27.0 M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Hong Kong 57 244.8 M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Indiana University	6 8
M University of Georgia 124 1801.6 M German National Federation 65 2761.1 M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland 15 330.8 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 NM T. Head and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 Herndon, Virginia 377 3994.0 M University of Houston 377 3994.0 M Northern Illinois University 57 244.8 M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University of Pennsylvania 16002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 161 1021.7	8
M German National Federation M Gettysburg College NM Goucher College Baltimore, Maryland M University of Guelph M University of Hartford M Hartwick College M Harvard University M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hong Kong M University of Hong Kong M University of Houston M University of Houston M University of Houston M University of Houston M University of Illinois at Chicago M University of Illinois at Urbana M University of Illinois at Urbana M Illinois State University at Normal M Indiana University of Pennsylvania Indiana, Pennsylvania Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 103 103 103 103 104 105 105 107 107 108 108 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109 109	
M Gettysburg College 103 3306.8 NM Goucher College 2 2 .4 Baltimore, Maryland 5 .4 M University of Guelph 15 330.8 M University of Hartford 8 39.4 M Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 NM T. Head and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 Herndon, Virginia 6 198.9 M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Houston 377 3994.0 M Northern Illinois University 57 244.8 M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 1021.7	
NM Goucher College Baltimore, Maryland M University of Guelph M University of Hartford M University of Hartford M Hartwick College M Harvard University M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hawaii at Manoa M University of Hongany, Inc. Herndon, Virginia M University of Hong Kong M University of Hong Kong M University of Houston M University of Houston M University of Jllinois University M University of Illinois University M University of Illinois at Chicago M University of Illinois at Urbana M Illinois State University at Normal M Illinois State University NM Indiana University NM Indiana University NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania Indiana, Pennsylvania M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148 1021.7	
Baltimore, Maryland M. University of Guelph 15 330.8 M. University of Hartford 8 39.4 M. Hartwick College 23 1006.1 M. Harvard University 1,069 22642.0 M. University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 N.M. T. Head and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 Herndon, Virginia 3 58.7 M. University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M. University of Hong Kong 57 244.8 M. University of Houston 377 3994.0 M. Northern Illinois University 57 244.8 M. University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M. University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M. Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M. Indiana University of Pennsylvania 36002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 1021.7	
MUniversity of Hartford839.4MHartwick College231006.1MHarvard University1,06922642.0MUniversity of Hawaii at Manoa4927.0NMT. Head and Company, Inc.358.7Herndon, Virginia58.748.9MUniversity of Hong Kong6198.9MUniversity of Houston3773994.0MNorthern Illinois University57244.8MUniversity of Illinois at Chicago912949.5MUniversity of Illinois at Urbana37611510.4MIllinois State University at Normal3803904.0MIndiana University of Pennsylvania36002.8Indiana, Pennsylvania36002.8MInstitute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica1481021.7	
MHartwick College231006.1MHarvard University1,06922642.0MUniversity of Hawaii at Manoa4927.0NMT. Head and Company, Inc.358.7Herndon, Virginia58.7MUniversity of Hong Kong6198.9MUniversity of Houston3773994.0MNorthern Illinois University57244.8MUniversity of Illinois at Chicago912949.5MUniversity of Illinois at Urbana37611510.4MIllinois State University at Normal3803904.0MIndiana University5399941.5NMIndiana University of Pennsylvania36002.8MInstitute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica1481021.7	
MHarvard University1,06922642.0MUniversity of Hawaii at Manoa4927.0NMT. Head and Company, Inc.358.7Herndon, Virginia6198.9MUniversity of Hong Kong6198.9MUniversity of Houston3773994.0MNorthern Illinois University57244.8MUniversity of Illinois at Chicago912949.5MUniversity of Illinois at Urbana37611510.4MIllinois State University at Normal3803904.0MIndiana University of Pennsylvania36002.8Indiana, Pennsylvania36002.8MInstitute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica1481021.7	
M University of Hawaii at Manoa 49 27.0 NM T. Head and Company, Inc. 3 58.7 Herndon, Virginia M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Houston 377 3994.0 M Northern Illinois University 57 244.8 M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148	
NM T. Head and Company, Inc. Herndon, Virginia M University of Hong Kong M University of Houston M Northern Illinois University M University of Illinois at Chicago M University of Illinois at Chicago M University of Illinois at Urbana M Illinois State University at Normal M Indiana University NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania Indiana, Pennsylvania M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 3 58.7 58.7 58.7 58.7 58.7 58.7 58.7 58.7	
Herndon, Virginia M University of Hong Kong 6 198.9 M University of Houston 377 3994.0 M Northern Illinois University 57 244.8 M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University 539 9941.5 NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 148 1021.7	
MUniversity of Houston3773994.0MNorthern Illinois University57244.8MUniversity of Illinois at Chicago912949.5MUniversity of Illinois at Urbana37611510.4MIllinois State University at Normal3803904.0MIndiana University5399941.5NMIndiana University of Pennsylvania36002.8Indiana, Pennsylvania31021.7MInstitute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica1481021.7	
M Northern Illinois University 57 244.8 M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University 539 9941.5 NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 3 1021.7	
M University of Illinois at Chicago 91 2949.5 M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University 539 9941.5 NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 148 1021.7	-
M University of Illinois at Urbana 376 11510.4 M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University 539 9941.5 NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148 1021.7	
M Illinois State University at Normal 380 3904.0 M Indiana University 539 9941.5 NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania 3 1021.7 M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148 1021.7	
NM Indiana University of Pennsylvania 3 6002.8 Indiana, Pennsylvania M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148 1021.7	
Indiana, Pennsylvania M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148 1021.7	
M Institute of European and American Studies, Academia Sinica 148 1021.7	0
	6
NM Institute for Women's Policy Research 1	0
Washington, DC	Ü
M lowa State University 927 12948.6	
M University of lowa 496 9771.6	
M Israeli National Membership 97 338.3 M Iackson State University 63 204.8	
M Jackson State University 63 204.8 M James Madison University 4 1140.4	
M Johns Hopkins University 424 1813.2	
70.75.2	Ö
Iowa City, Iowa	
M Kansas State University 91 529.3	
M University of Kansas 103 3171.3 M Kent State University 29 306.10	
M Kent State University 29 306.19 M University of Kentucky 316 9605.9	
M Kobe University 8 130.3.	
M Kyoto University of Foreign Studies 20 53.2	
NM LINC 1	0
Lincoln, Massachusetts	^
NM Librairie Du Soliel 1 Hull, Quebec, Canada	0
M Library of Congress 65 331.6	0
NM Livingston Board of Education 1	ŏ
Livingston, New Jersey	

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	The London School of Economics and Political Science London, England	1	.08
М	Louisiana State University	178	5213.12
M	University of Louisville	287	4343.12
M	Loyola University of Chicago	346	4353.84
M	Loyola University of New Orleans	4	.48
M	University of Maine at Orono	27	70.16
M	Marquette University	31	583.76
M	University of Maryland, Baltimore County	80	1054.40
M	University of Maryland at College Park	855	9330.24
M	Massachusetts Federation	293	8378.80
M	Massachusetts Institute of Technology	637	15325.28
M	McGill University	51	1605.68
M	McMaster University	236	2931.44
M	Merrimack College	27	1067.52
M	Miami University	63	294.08
NM	The Michael Allen Company	1	0
	Westport, Connecticut	·	J
M	Michigan State University	133	792.24
M	University of Michigan	447	26101.68
M	Middlebury College	13	1184.96
NM	Midwest Library Service	2	0
	Bridgeton, Missouri	-	· ·
М	University of Minnesota, Twin Cities	400	6080.08
M	Minnesota State University Federation	140	7928.64
M	Mississippi State University	40	1394.56
M	University of Mississippi	156	384.64
M	University of Missouri at Columbia	450	2619.76
M	University of Missouri at St. Louis	222	204.72
M	University of Montreal	258	304.00
M	Morehouse College	33	1426.24
NM	Murray State University	1	0
	Murray, Kentucky		•
M	Nassau Community College	58	459.76
NM	National Bureau of Economic Research	3	19.36
	Cambridge, Massachusetts		
NM	Naval Postgraduate School	1	618.64
	Monterey, Čalifornia		
M	University of Nebraska at Lincoln	127	2106.08
NM		1	0
	Omaha, Nebraska		
M	University of Nevada at Las Vegas	261	1165.68
M	University of Nevada at Reno	72	347.52
NM	New England Medical Center	1	0
	Boston, Massachusetts		
M	University of New Hampshire	32	1268.64
M	New Mexico State University	31	808.32
M	University of New Mexico	183	1072.72
M	University of New Orleans	15	304.00
M	New School for Social Research	118	598.32
NM	New York Department of City Planning	1	0
	New York, New York		
M	New York University	371	9677.84
M	North Carolina Central University	4	1.76
M	North Carolina State University	380	3169.12
M	University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill	973	18653.84
M	University of North Carolina at Charlotte	94	1233.60
M	University of North Carolina at Greensboro	146	1664.16
NM	University of North Dakota	1	0
	Grand Forks, North Dakota		
М	University of North Texas	353	3138.48

Rec	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
М	Northeastern University	158	5220.48
M	Northwestern University	264	9009.60
M	Norwegian Social Science Data Services	38	346.08
M	University of Notre Dame	255	6515.68
NM	Oakland University	8	1106.08
	Rochester, Michigan		
M	Oberlin College	135	2544.88
M	Occidental College	3	5.44
М	Ohio State University	724	5329.28
М	Ohio University	114	9491.52
M	Ohio Wesleyan University	2	49.76
M	Oklahoma State University	69	420.72
М	University of Oklahoma	265	1010.88
M	Old Dominion University	39	1497.12
M	Oregon State University	177	1364.00
M	University of Oregon	141	2258.40
M	Pace University	9	811.28
INIVI	Michael Pagnam	1	0
М	Haddonfield, New Jersey Pennsylvania State University	672	24069.64
M		672 497	34968.64
	Philadelphia Federation Pine Forge Press	1	14607.28 0
1 4/41	Newbury Park, California	·	U
М	University of Pittsburgh	247	2550.00
M	Portland State University	57	1108.40
NM		1	0
	Los Angeles, California	·	Ü
M	Princeton University	586	12971.52
M	University of Puget Sound	3	15.68
M	Purdue University	490	2553.20
М	The RAND Corporation	31 <i>7</i>	22190.00
M	Reed College	102	711.04
М	University of Rhode Island	137	6442.56
M	Rhodes College	12	1586 . 72
M	Rice University	89	1288.88
M	University of Richmond	1	61.84
M	The Robert Wood Johnson Foundation	8	93.20
M	University of Rochester	538	3482.48
M	Rutgers — The State University	226	6379.36
M	Sam Houston State University	3	1.76
M M	San Diego State University	20	222.24
	Sangamon State University Judith Scully	15	99.92
INIVI	Oak Park, Illinois	1	0
NM	Siena College	1	31.28
	Loudonville, New York	1	31.20
М	Simon Fraser University	57	982.32
M	University of South Carolina	58	1851.28
M	Southeastern Louisiana University	30	185.28
M	University of Southern California	168	6320.00
NM	Southern Connecticut State University	1	0
•	New Haven, Connecticut	•	ŭ
M	Southern Illinois University at Carbondale	30	1697.12
M	Southern Illinois University at Edwardsville	12	230.96
NM	Southern Methodist University	3	0
	Dallas, Texas		
M	Spelman College	1	82.96
M	Stanford University	366	<i>7</i> 165.20
M	State University of New York at Albany	357	5388.48
M	State University of New York at Binghamton	286	4758.16
M	State University of New York at Buffalo	114	1958.72

Rec	ipient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
NM	State University of New York at Geneseo Geneseo, New York	4	82.72
M	State University of New York at Stony Brook	162	4179.12
M	State University of New York, College at Buffalo	38	412.72
M	Swarthmore College	1	.96
M	Swedish National Membership	45	774.00
M	Swiss National Membership	16	100.72
M	Syracuse University	250	6911.36
M	Temple University	87	6458.96
M	University of Tennessee at Knoxville	122	1365.76
M	Texas A&M University	446	7109.92
M	Texas Tech University	144	2452.40
M	University of Texas at Arlington	7	118.64
M	University of Texas at Austin	565	4836.72
M	University of Texas at Dallas	149	2027.28
NM	University of Texas, Medical Branch at Galveston	4	23.36
	Galveston, Texas		
M	University of Texas at San Antonio	15	641.04
М	University of Toledo	93	4027.52
M	University of Toronto	80	<i>7</i> 53.68
M	Tufts University	39	1211.20
M	Tulane University	461	4875.60
NM	United States Congress	2	0
	Washington, DC		
NM	United States Department of Agriculture	2	19.12
	Washington, DC		
NM	United States Department of Commerce	16	191.44
N IA 4	Washington, DC	4	
INIM	United States Department of Defense	1	19.36
NIA	Washington, DC United States Department of Health and Human Services	21	20.20
14141	Washington, DC	31	39.28
NM	United States Department of Justice	15	20.72
INIVE	Washington, DC	13	20.72
NM	United States Department of Labor	4	72 72
14141	Washington, DC	4	72.72
NM	United States Department of Treasury	1	0
1 4771	Washington, DC	•	0
NM	United States Military Academy	6	1462.32
1 4171	West Point, New York	U	1402.32
М	Union College	80	58.48
	The Urban Institute	2	0
	Washington, DC	-	· ·
M	Ursinus College	42	347.44
NM	Utah State University	1	0
	Logan, Utah		· ·
M	University of Utah	503	10201.60
M	Vanderbilt University	254	7302.72
NM	Thomas P. Vartanian	1	0
	Baltimore, Maryland		_
M	Vassar College	7	1.04
M	University of Vermont	39	348.80
M	Virginia Ćommonwealth University	232	2215.36
M	Virginia Federation	558	10055.92
M	Virginia Polytechnic Institute and State University	359	5329.20
NM	The WEFA Group	1	2.80
	Burlington, Massachusetts		
M	Wake Forest University	60	3104.80
M	State of Washington	2	86.00
M	Washington State University	270	7763.12
М	Washington University	441	2645.20

Reci	pient	Number of Datasets	Number of Megabytes
М	University of Washington	80	4056.00
M	Wayne State University	231	4411.60
М	Western Washington University	19	184.40
NM	William E. Wecker Associates, Inc. Novato, California	158	302.96
М	Wellesley College	61	667.84
М	Wesleyan University	36	247.20
М	West Virginia University	249	2853.68
M	Western Kentucky University	10	79.92
M	Western Michigan University	137	2496.48
M	University of Western Ontario	107	543.84
M	Wheaton College	19	210.64
M	Wichita State University	75	2845.76
NM	Widener University	1	0
	Chester, Pennsylvania		
NM	Mr. Guido Willems	2	.08
	Aachen, Germany		
NM	William M. Mercer, Inc.	13	365.44
	Milwaukee, Wisconsin		
M	University of Windsor	189	974.72
M	University of Wisconsin at Eau Claire	<i>7</i> 5	897.44
M	University of Wisconsin at Madison	<i>77</i> 3	11219.60
M	University of Wisconsin at Milwaukee	210	1265.44
M	Wittenberg University	1 <i>7</i>	85.76
M	University of Wyoming	52	387.20
M	Yale Federation	245	7113.20
NM	Yankee Book Peddler, Inc. Contoocook, New Hampshire	2	0
NM	York College of Pennsylvania	18	2.64
NM	York, Pennsylvania	1	0
INIVI	St. Paul, Minnesota	I	U

Totals:

Total Number of Institutions316Total Number of Datasets44,868Total Number of Megabytes855,292

APPENDIX C: EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

1992 Summer Program Courses and Instructors

1992 Summer Training Program Courses and Instructors

First Session: June 29-July 24

Lectures

BASIC MATHEMATICS ■ Stephen Bringardner, Mathematics, Washtenaw Community College

MATHEMATICS FOR SOCIAL SCIENTISTS ■ James Dowdy, Mathematics, West Virginia University

MEASUREMENT AND DESIGN: THE LOGIC OF DATA ANALYSIS • William Sullivan, Natural Resources, University of Illinois

INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTING Michael Hawthorne, Political Science, Pembroke State University

QUANTITATIVE METHODS OF PROGRAM EVALUATION ■ Lawrence Mohr, Political Science, University of Michigan

Workshops

INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICS AND DATA ANALYSIS I

Jack Wilson, Mathematics, University of North Carolina, Asheville

INTRODUCTION TO REGRESSION ANALYSIS
Saundra Schneider, Political Science, University of South Carolina

REGRESSION ANALYSIS Timothy McDaniel, Political Science, University of Michigan

REGRESSION ANALYSIS ■ Geoffrey Fong, Psychology, University of Waterloo

MULTIVARIATE STATISTICAL METHODS
Richard Clubb, Psychology, University of Arkansas

SCALING AND DIMENSIONAL ANALYSIS William Jacoby, Political Science, University of South Carolina

QUANTITATIVE HISTORICAL ANALYSIS & Margo Anderson, History, University of Wisconsin, Milwaukee

MATHEMATICAL MODELS: GAME THEORY - James Morrow, Hoover Institution

LATINO RESEARCH ISSUES
Jorge Chapa, LBJ School of Public Affairs, University of Texas, and Katherine Baisden, Center for Chicano Research, Stanford University

GENERALIZED LINEAR MODELS (MAXIMUM LIKELIHOOD ESTIMATION) ■ Gary King, Harvard University; Nancy Burns, University of Michigan; Neal Beck, University of California, San Diego; and Charles Franklin, Political Science, University of Wisconsin

LOGIT AND LOG-LINEAR MODELS (June 22–26) ■ Michael Berbaum, Institute for Social Science Research, University of Alabama

NETWORK ANALYSIS (July 13–17) ■ Stanley Wasserman, Psychology, University of Illinois

UTILIZATION OF DATA RESOURCES FROM THE 1990 CENSUS (June 15–19) ■ Erik Austin, ICPSR; Rodney Ganey, University of Notre Dame; Anne Santiago, University of Michigan; Larry Carbaugh, Census Bureau; Grace York, University of Michigan; Katherine Wallman, COPAFS; Richard Rockwell, ICPSR

ITEM RESPONSE THEORY AND MEASUREMENT (July 6–10) I Jeffrey Tanaka, Psychology, University of Illinois

THE NATIONAL MEDICAL EXPENDITURE SURVEY (June 8-12) Daniel Walden and Staff, NIH

SECONDARY ANALYSIS OF DATA COLLECTIONS ON SUBSTANCE USE BY YOUTHS (July 13–17) ■ Patrick O'Malley, University of Michigan; Joseph Gfroferer, NIDA; Deborah Winn, NCHS

APPENDIX C: EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

Second Session: July 27-August 21

Lectures

FORMAL (DYNAMIC) MODELS OF SOCIAL SYSTEMS ■ Courtney Brown, Political Science, Emory University

MATRIX ALGEBRA Timothy McDaniel, Political Science, University of Michigan

INTRODUCTION TO COMPUTING Michael Hawthorne, Political Science, Pembroke State University

DYNAMIC AND LONGITUDINAL ANALYSIS
Gregory Markus, Political Science, University of Michigan (Panel Analysis, Pooled Time Series Analysis); Charles Denk, Sociology, University of Virginia (Event History Analysis); Walter Labys, Economics, West Virginia University (Time Series Tests)

Workshops

STRUCTURAL EQUATION (CAUSAL) MODELS ■ Robert Luskin, Political Science, University of Texas

REGRESSION ANALYSIS ■ Brian Pollins, Political Science, Ohio State University

TIME SERIES ANALYSIS ■ James Granato, Political Science, Michigan State University

INTRODUCTION TO STATISTICS AND DATA ANALYSIS II

Merle Feldbaum, Political Science, University of Michigan

CATEGORICAL DATA ANALYSIS ■ David Cross, Psychology, Texas Christian University

"LISREL" MODELS: GENERAL STRUCTURAL EQUATIONS Douglas Baer, Sociology, Western Ontario University

MATHEMATICAL MODELS: RATIONAL CHOICE - Jack Knight, Political Science, Washington University

ADVANCED ANALYSIS OF VARIANCE Michael Berbaum, Institute for Social Science Research, University of Alabama

QUANTITATIVE ANALYSIS OF CRIME AND CRIMINAL JUSTICE

James Lynch, Law and Society, American University

GENERAL STRUCTURAL EQUATION ("LISREL") MODELS: AN INTRODUCTION (July 27–31)
Kenneth Bollen, Sociology, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

GENERAL STRUCTURAL EQUATION ("LISREL") MODELS: INTERMEDIATE TOPICS (August 3–7) ■ Kenneth Bollen, Sociology, University of North Carolina, Chapel Hill

MANAGEMENT OF MACHINE-READABLE SOCIAL SCIENCE INFORMATION (August 10–14) ■ Charles Humphrey, University of Alberta; Diane Geraci, State University of New York, Binghamton; James Jacobs, University of California, San Diego

The Blalock Lectures: Advanced Topics in Social Research

RESAMPLING METHODS: JACKKNIFE AND BOOTSTRAP (July 6–10) ■ Robert Stine, Wharton School, University of Pennsylvania

GRAPHICAL DATA ANALYSIS AND PRESENTATION (July 6-10) John Fox, Sociology, York University

DATA VISUALIZATION (July 13–15) ■ Werner Stuetzle, Statistics, University of Washington

NON-PARAMETRIC REGRESSION (July 16–17) ■ Werner Stuetzle, Statistics, University of Washington

NON-VOTING AND TURNOUT (July 16) ■ Warren Miller, Political Science, Arizona State University

APPENDIX C: EDUCATIONAL ACTIVITIES

PARTY IDENTIFICATION (July 17) Warren Miller, Political Science, Arizona State University

MASS-ELITE LINKAGES (July 20) ■ Warren Miller, Political Science, Arizona State University

AMERICAN NATIONAL ELECTION STUDIES (July 21) ■ Warren Miller, Political Science, Arizona State University

THE STRANGE NEW SCIENCE OF CHAOS (July 30) (The PBS-NOVA Video)

POLITICS AND THE ENVIRONMENT: GLOBAL INSTABILITIES AND CHAOS DOMINATE (July 31)
Courtney Brown, Political Science, Emory University

AN INTRODUCTION TO GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEMS (August 11) ■ Sam Thompson, Consortium for International Earth Science Information Network (CIESIN)

ANALYSIS OF SPATIAL DATA (August 12) ■ Jeffery Star, National Center for Geographic Information Analysis (NCGIA), University of California, Santa Barbara

GIS AND SOCIAL SCIENCE (August 13) Michael Goodchild, National Center for Geographic Information Analysis (NCGIA), University of California, Santa Barbara

APPENDIX D: ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1992–1993

ICPSR Organizational Documents

Constitution

Bylaws

Memorandum of Agreement

ICPSR Member Institutions and Official Representatives, 1992–1993

Akron, University of Alabama, University of, Birmingham Alabama Federation

* Alabama, University of, Tuscaloosa Birmingham Southern College

Alberta, University of
Alfred University
American University
Appalachian State University
Arizona State University
Arizona, University of
Arkansas State University

Arkansas, University of, Fayetteville Arkansas, University of, Little Rock Associated Colleges of the Midwest

* Lawrence University
Carleton College
Denison University
Depauw University
Grinnell College
Hope College
Kenyon College
Macalester College
Wabash College
Wooster, College of
Aubum University at Aubum
Australian National Membership

Australian National University

University of Adelaide
University of Canberra
Charles Sturt University
Curtin University of Technology
Deakin University
Edith Cowan University

Flinders University of South Australia Griffith University James Cook University

LaTrobe University
Macquarie University
University of Melbourne
Monash University
University of New England
University of New South Wales
Queensland Institute of Technology
University of Queensland
Swinburne Institute of Technology

University of Sydney
University of Tasmania
University of Technology, Sydney
Victoria University of Technology
University of Western Australia
University of Western Sydney
University of Wollongong

Bard College
Bates College
Bloomsburg University
Boise State University
Boston College
Bowdoin College
Bowling Green State University
Brandeis University
Brazilian National Membership
* University of Campinas
Brigham Young University
British Columbia, University of
British National Federation
* ESRC Archives, Essex
Brookings Institution, The
Brown University

Calgary, University of

Steve Aby C. Diann Weatherly

Michael Berbaum Robert Slagter Charles Humphrey Karen L. Porter Vivian Shayne Paul Geyer John Geer William Dixon David England William A. Schwab Samuel A. Covington

Kathy Lawrence Beverly Nagel William Bishop Carl Singer Keiko Yamanaka Carl Heideman Joe Klesner Jack E. Rossman David Hadley Karen Beckwith James H. Gundlach

Roger Jones

Triveni Kuchi Douglas I. Hodgkin Robert Abbot Christine Loucks James Walsh Carol O'Donnell James Q. Graham, Jr. Susan Reynold

Rachel Meneguello David B. Magleby Hilde Colenbrander

Eric Tanenbaum Sallyjune Kuka Donna Souza Neil Nevitte

APPENDIX D: ORGANIZATION & ADMINISTRATION

California State University and Colleges California State University California State University at Bakersfield California State University at Chico California State University at Dominguez Hills California State University at Fresno California State University at Fullerton California State University at Hayward California State University at Humboldt California State University at Long Beach California State University at Los Angeles California State University at Northridge California State University at Pomona California State University at Sacramento California State University at San Bernardino California State University at San Francisco California State University at San Jose California State University at San Luis Obispo California State University at Stanislaus California, University of, at Berkeley California, University of, at Davis California, University of, at Irvine California, University of, at Los Angeles California, University of, at Riverside California, University of, at San Diego California, University of, at Santa Barbara California, University of, at Santa Cruz Calabria, University of Carnegie-Mellon University Case Western Reserve University Catholic University of America Central Michigan University Chicago Academy of Science Chicago, University of Christopher Newport University Cincinnati, University of Claremont Graduate School Clemson University Cleveland State University Colby College Colgate University Colorado, University of, at Boulder Colorado, University of, at Denver Columbia University Connecticut, University of Cornell Federation * Cornell University Hamilton College City University of New York Federation Baruch College Brooklyn College City College Graduate School and University Center Hunter College John Jay College Lehman College Queens College College of Staten Island York Čollege Danish National Membership * Odense University Aalborg University Center University of Aarhus University of Copenhagen Roskilde University Center Dartmouth College Davidson College Delaware, University of DePaul University Doshisha University Drake University

Drew University

Duke University

Donald Carder lames Ross Jon S. Ebeling Margaret Blue Edward Nelson Richard T. Serpe Daniel Graves ledon Emenhiser Hal Hubbard Ted Anagnoson Gene Turner John L. Korey Carol Barnes Elliott Barkan Richard Deleon Peter Haas Richard A. Shaffer Lawrence Giventer Ilona Einowski Jean Stratford Daniel C. Tsang Elizabeth Stephenson Brian P. Copenhaven james Jacobs Joan R. Murdoch Thomas Pettigrew Giuseppe Colasanti Judith Brink Jacqueline Sorohan Douglas Sloane T. Edward Westen Ion D. Viller Michael Dawson Catherine Doyle Alfred J. Tuchfarber Joel Smith Carla Rathbone Henry York Marilyn S. Mavrinac Kevin Rask James L. Little W. James Smith Gregory Haley Everett C. Ladd, Jr.

Ann Gray Ralph Stenstrom

David Gallagher Howard Spivak Jeffrey Rosen Asher Arian Nancy Larkin Richard Lovely William Bosworth Andrew Beveridge Zafar Ahmad Richard Boris

Per Nielsen

Gayle Poinsette Mary Thomberry Larry Hotchkiss Dawne Tortorella Yasuo Sakakibara Arthur B. Sanders Paul Coen Robert Jackson

Dutch National Membership Steinmetzarchief Mr. Repke Devries Erasmus Universiteit Rotterdam Katholieke Universiteit Nijmegen Rijksuniversiteit Leiden Rijksuniversiteit Utrecht University van Amsterdam Universiteit Brabant Universiteit Twente Vrje Universiteit Amsterdam Dorothy H. Clayton East Carolina University Eastern Michigan University Stuart Karabenik **Emory University** Robert Greene European University Institute Robert Danziger Florida Consortium for Political Research * Florida, University of Kenneth Wald Central Florida, University of Phillip Pollock Florida Atlantic University Anita Pritchard Florida International University John Stack Florida State University William Berr Miami, University of Lyn MacCorkle South Florida, University of West Florida, University of Joe Floyd Lal Goel Fordham University James P. McCabe Francis Marion College Franklin and Marshall College John Baltzell Robert Friedrich French National Membership * Domaine Universitaire **Bruno Cautres** Furman University Kenneth D. Peterson Timothy Armstrong Gallaudet University Greg Guagnano George Mason University Susan Wiley George Washington University Georgetown University Clyde Wilcox Georgia State University David Sjoquist Georgia, University of Beata Kochut German National Federation *Zentralarchiv für empirische Sozialforschung Harald Rohlinger Institut für politische Wissenschaft der Christian-Albrechts Universität Institut für Sozialwissenschaften an der Universität Mannheim Sozialwissenschaftliches Forschungsinstitut der Konrad-Adenauer-Stiftung Gettysburg College Dean Duncan Guelph, University of Bo Wandschneider Hartford, University of John A. Stewart Hartwick College Robert E. Danford Harvard University Ioshua Blatt Hawaii, University of Heather Hammer Hokkaido University Sudafumi Kawato Hong Kong, University of Robert Chung Houston, University of Mark Franklin Howard University Johnnie Daniel Hungarian National Membership * Hungarian Academy of Sciences (TARKI) Laszlo Fustos Illinois State University, at Normal Carolyn Shaffer Illinois, University of, at Chicago Jeong-Hwa Lee Illinois, University of, at Urbana Lawrence Jones Gerald C. Wright, Jr. Jai-You Sheu Indiana University Institute of European and American Studies Iowa State University Eric Plutzer lowa, University of Arthur Miller Israeli National Membership The Hebrew University Michal Peleg Bar-Ilan University Ben-Gurion University Haifa University The Technion Tel-Aviv University Jackson State University Mary Coleman James Madison University Robert Brookshire Johns Hopkins University Richard Katz James L. Franke Kansas State University

Roger T. Anderson

Yasuko Miyazaki Laura M. Bartolo

Mark Peffley

Kansas, University of

Kent State University Kentucky, University of

Keio University

Kobe University Kyoto University of Foreign Studies Lehigh University Library of Congress Louisiana State University Louisville, University of Loyola College Loyola University of Chicago Loyola University of New Orleans Manitoba, University of Marquette University Maryland, University of, at Baltimore Maryland, University of, at College Park Massachusetts Federation University of Massachusetts, Amherst Smith College Massachusetts Institute of Technology McGill University McMaster University Memphis State University Merrimack College Miami University Michigan State University Michigan, University of Middlebury College Minnesota State University Federation Mankato State University Bemidji State University Metropolitan State University Moorhead State University Saint Cloud State University Southwest State University Winona State University Minnesota, University of, Morris Minnesota, University of, Twin Cities Mississippi State University Mississippi, University of Missouri, University of, at Columbia Missouri, University of, at St. Louis Montreal, University of Morehouse College Nassau Community College National Chengchi University Nebraska, University of, at Lincoln Nevada, University of, at Las Vegas Nevada, University of, at Reno New Hampshire, University of New Mexico State University New Mexico, University of New Orleans, University of New School for Social Research New York University North Carolina Central University North Carolina State University North Carolina, University of, at Chapel Hill North Carolina, University of, at Charlotte North Carolina, University of, at Greensboro North Texas, University of Northeastern University Northern Arizona University Northern Illinois University Northwestern University Norwegian National Membership * Norwegian Social Science Data Services University of Bergen University of Oslo Notre Dame, University of Oberlin College Occidental College

Ohio State University

Ohio Wesleyan University

Oklahoma State University

Oklahoma, University of

Ohio University

Katurou Kanzaki Ichiro Akano
Diane T. Hyland
Royce Crocker
Pete McCool
Philip Sager
Mark F. Peyrot
John Frendreis
Herb Nickles
Ken McVicar
Duane Swank
John Suess
Eric Uslaner

Douglas L. Anderton Constance Willett Rae Jean Wiggins Susan Czarnocki H.J. Jacek T. David Mason Eugene R. DeClercq Clyde Brown Harriet Dhanak Nancy Burns Jeffrey Rehbach

Donald Olson Fred Hartman Cheryl Anderson Les Bakke Randy Kolb Duane Herrick Dan Pecarina Daniel Stengel William H. Flanigan David Breaux Royce Kurtz Gwendolyn Gray Calvin Mouw Arlette Joffee Nicodeme Anne C. Baird William Feigelman Chen Yih-Yan Elizabeth Theiss-Morse Dennis L. Soden Duncan M. Aldrich Susan Frankel Melvin Marlo Brown Arthur St. George John K. Wildgen Sheri Prupis Bert Holland Robert G. Montgomery Lisa T. Abbott John Shelton Reed Dawn Hubbs Charles Prysby Valerie J. Martinez Jack McDevitt James M. Armour Mr. Scott Fahey Ann Janda

Bjorn Henrichsen

Rodney F. Ganey Luis Fernandez Manuel Pastor Aage Clausen Carol Blum Robert J. Gitter Michael Hirlinger David R. Morgan

Old Dominion University Oregon State University Oregon, University of Pace University Pennsylvania State University People's University of China Philadelphia Federation * Pennsylvania, University of Bryn Mawr College La Salle University Villanova University Pittsburgh, University of Polish National Membership Polish Academy of Sciences Princeton University Puget Sound, University of Purdue University Rand Corporation Reed College Rhode Island, University of Rice University Richmond, University of Robert Wood Johnson Foundation Rochester, University of **Rutgers University** Salisbury State University Sam Houston State University San Diego State University Sangamon State University Santa Clara University Simon Fraser University South Alabama, University of South Carolina, University of Southeastern Louisiana University Southern California, University of Southern Illinois University, Carbondale Southern Illinois University, Edwardsville Southern University, Baton Rouge Southwestern University Spelman College St. Anselm College St. Mary's University Stanford University State University of New York, Albany State University of New York, Binghamton State University of New York, Buffalo State University of New York, Stony Brook State University of New York, College at Buffalo State University of New York, College at New Paltz Swarthmore College Swedish National Membership * Swedish Social Science Data Service Linkoping University University of Göteborg University of Lund University of Stockholm University of Uppsala Swiss National Federation Graduate Institute for International Studies University of Geneva University of Zurich Syracuse University Taylor University Temple University
Tennessee, University of, at Knoxville Texas A&M University Texas Tech University Texas, University of, at Arlington Texas, University of, at Austin Texas, University of, at Dallas Texas, University of, at San Antonio Texas, University of, Medical Branch, at Galveston

Toledo, University of Toronto, University of Elaine Hall Patrick Grace Cathlene Leue Lawrence A. Kittinger Christine Avery Qiang Li

Janusz Szyrmer David Karen Stephen A. Longo Matt Kerbel Philip Sidel

Edmund Wnun-Lipinski Judith S. Rowe Lori Ricigliano James McCann Mary Lukanuski John Pock Carole Miller John Alford Daniel Palazzolo Dianne Barker Richard G. Niemi Scott Bilder Bradley W. Taylor Dennis Longmire Douglas Coe Edward Wass Marilyn Fernandez Walter Piovesan Marc Matre lacqueline Cunningham Kurt Corbello Soo-ik Chung Vincent A. Lacey John V. Farrell Huey L. Perry Deborah J. Kramer Iris Aikens-Singleton Ronald Dumont Palmer Hall Richard Fitchen Eleanor Gossen Diane Geraci Tai Kang Tom Phelan Donald Henning William W. Philliber Gudmund Iverson

Lennart Brantgarde

Urs Luterbacher Pierre Allan Andree Helminger George Abbott Philip Loy David Elesh Diane Perushek John D. Robertson Aierie Lee Michael Moore Brian E. Roberts Kurt J. Beron Richard Harris Todd Miller Ronald Randall Laine Ruus

Tufts University Tulane University Union College United States Commission on Civil Rights Ursinus College Utah State University Utah, University of Vanderbilt University Vassar College Vermont, University of Virginia Commonwealth University Virginia Federation *University of Virginia College of William and Mary Virginia Polytechnic Institute Wake Forest University
Washington State Office of Financial Management Washington and Lee University Washington State University Washington University Washington, University of Wayne State University Wellesley College Wesleyan University West Virginia University Western Kentucky University Western Michigan University Western Ontario, University of Western Washington University Wheaton College Wichita State University Williams College Windsor, University of Wisconsin, University of, at Eau Claire Wisconsin, University of, at Madison

Wisconsin, University of, at Milwaukee

Wittenberg University Wyoming, University of Yale Federation

* Yale University

Trinity College

Durwood Marshall Joel Devine Theresa Marchant-Shapiro Harriet Duleep Bernard Lentz Peter F. Galderisi John G. Francis Anne Reuland Shirley Maul Kevin Wiberg Scott Keeter

Keeok Park Ronald Rapoport Dave Beagle Catherine Tuttle Harris Sharon Estee Mark Rush Siegfried H. Vogt William Olbrich Fred Nick Mark E. Neithercut Julie Drucker Richard Boyd Christopher Z. Mooney J.J. Sloan Harley Behm Douglas G. Link Carl Simpson Lyman Kellstedt Brian W. Williams David A. Booth Kai Hildebrandt Rick Richmond Laura Guy Thomas Holbrook Rob Baker Gary D. Hampe

Joann Dionne Noreen Channels

^{*} Contact Institution

Constitution Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Preamble

The Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research was founded at the University of Michigan in 1962 and is currently governed under a Memorandum of Organization as a partnership between member institutions and the Center for Political Studies of the Institute for Social Research. This Constitution and the accompanying Bylaws establish the organizational identity for ICPSR. The Bylaws authorize ICPSR to affiliate for specific purposes with a host institution.

Article I. Name

This organization will be called the Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research (ICPSR).

Article II. Purposes

The purposes of the ICPSR are to promote and facilitate research and instruction in the social sciences and related areas, by acquiring, developing, archiving, and disseminating data and documentation for instruction and research; conducting related instructional programs; conducting such other activities as may be authorized in accord with the Bylaws; and obtaining the resources necessary to accomplish these purposes.

Article III. Membership

The eligible membership of ICPSR includes: (1) institutions of higher education, units within institutions of higher education, and federations of educational institutions; and (2) such institutions and organizations as may subsequently be designated in accord with the Bylaws. Categories of membership will be designated in the Bylaws. Services will be provided to members and others in accord with the Bylaws.

Article IV. Governance

Each member will be represented by an Official Representative chosen by the member. Representation arrangements for federations and national memberships will be set forth in the Bylaws. The membership through the Official Representatives will elect a Council to serve as the Executive Committee of the membership, with authority to act on behalf of the member institutions, employ personnel, enter into contracts, and carry out activities to execute the purposes specified in Article II. The composition, election, and organization of the Council will be set forth in the Bylaws.

Article V. Voting Rights

Each member in good standing, as specified in the Bylaws, will have one vote, to be cast by the Official Representative designated by the member.

Article VI. Meetings

The Council will hold regular and special meetings as provided in the Bylaws, but no less than once a year. The Official Representatives will meet at regular intervals as provided in the Bylaws.

Article VII. Dues

The Council will establish annual membership dues, which may vary according to category of membership and be separately negotiated for each federation and national membership. Members must be notified one year in advance of an increase in dues.

Article VIII. Fiscal Policies

Membership dues are to be used exclusively to finance activities and services on behalf of member institutions in accord with the purposes specified in Article II. Under the direction and with the approval of the Council, and congruent with its purposes, ICPSR may charge fees and seek and expend funds in addition to membership dues.

Article IX. Bylaws

ICPSR may adopt Bylaws, consistent with this Constitution, for the conduct of its affairs. Bylaws may be enacted, amended, or repealed: (1) by a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the Council eligible to vote, at a meeting of the Council or in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 30 days; or (2) by a majority vote of the Official Representatives eligible to vote, in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 90 days.

Article X. Amendments

Proposals to amend the Constitution may be initiated by majority vote of the Council or by a petition presented to the Council signed by Official Representatives of at least 25 member institutions. Amendments may be adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of the Official Representatives eligible to vote, in a mail ballot after written notice of at least 90 days.

Article XI. Ratification

This Constitution becomes effective when adopted by a two-thirds majority vote of all members of the Council eligible to vote.

Bylaws Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research

Preamble

These Bylaws are authorized by the Constitution of the ICPSR. The terms of the Preamble to the Constitution are applicable.

Article I. Membership

1. Conditions of Membership

A. Members will be assigned to categories based upon the member's size, program, and location. If the member-ship is formally held by a department or other unit, the characteristics of the entire university or organization will be considered in assigning a membership category. Guidelines for membership categories are:

Category A: Educational institutions with doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas.

Category B: Undergraduate institutions without doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas and with enrollments of 2,500 or more students.

Category S: Colleges without doctoral programs in the social sciences or related areas and with enrollments of fewer than 2,500 students.

Category C: Institutions in developing countries.

Categories F and N: Federated and national memberships consist of a number of institutions in categories A, B, C, and S that have joined together around a common link to the ICPSR. The common link is responsible for distributing data and documentation from the ICPSR to the other members. Dues are assessed based on the actual configuration of memberships.

- **B.** Not-for-profit research organizations having a clearly defined educational mission may, with approval of the Council, become members of ICPSR and be assigned to a membership category.
- C. Internal arrangements bearing upon the sources of financial support for the membership are the responsibility of the member. Each member is responsible for determining the eligibility of its faculty, staff, and students for participation in ICPSR activities.
- D. Associate Membership may be requested by other not-for-profit organizations having a clearly defined educational mission. Provision of services and appropriate dues will be set by Council. Associate membership does not carry voting privileges.
- E. Membership should be sought only with the expectation that benefits accrue with continuing participation. Short-term memberships are discouraged. Officials of member institutions agree to attempt to provide the necessary dues and local support on a continuing basis.
- F. Annual membership dues shall be paid by July 1 or at the beginning of such alternative annual membership cycle as may be agreed upon by individual members and ICPSR. Budgetary inability to meet a single year's membership dues will not necessitate termination of membership provided that the member is willing to make up the deficit across an agreed upon period not to exceed five years.
- G. A member may withdraw from membership after one year's written notice mailed to the Executive Director. Except under special circumstances, the ICPSR will require that use of all materials provided by ICPSR, including data and documentation, be discontinued upon termination of membership.
- H. A member may rejoin the ICPSR after dropping its membership. Payment of a "re-entry" fee of 50 percent of the annual dues in effect at the time of rejoining will normally be required. This fee is in addition to membership dues from the date of rejoining.

2. Benefits and Obligations of Membership

- **A.** The ICPSR staff will endeavor to provide equitable services to each member. Given the variety of functions, the limitations on time and space in the performance of some activities, and the variable pace of research activities at member institutions, the goal shall be equality in service over a period of years.
- B. Members will not distribute data or other materials supplied by ICPSR to other members, organizations, or individuals at other institutions, without the written agreement of ICPSR.
- C. Member institutions agree that data and other materials provided by ICPSR are to be used solely for statistical analysis and reporting of aggregated information, and not for investigation of specific individuals or organizations, except when identification is authorized in writing by ICPSR. Each member institution gives assurance that such uses of statistical data will conform to widely-accepted standards of practice and legal restrictions that are intended to protect the confidentiality of research subjects.
- D. Books, articles, conference papers, theses, dissertations, and other publications or reports that employ data or other resources provided by ICPSR should cite both original data collectors and ICPSR as the source, in accord with recommended citation procedures for computer files in the social sciences.
- E. Individuals who collect data or develop other research or instructional resources of general interest to the social science community are invited to make such resources available to the membership by offering them for deposit with ICPSR.
- F. Member institutions, through their Official Representatives, have the right to express concerns and complaints about services to the Executive Director, and if a matter is not satisfactorily resolved to file a grievance with Council. Council will investigate grievances and take such action as may be appropriate.

3. Services for Nonmembers

- A. ICPSR data and documentation will be provided to individuals who are not affiliated with a member institution. Such individuals requesting data for their research or instructional use will sign a loan agreement, and submit payment for charges assessed, before data are provided. ICPSR data and documentation may be provided to nonmember organizations on a basis negotiated by the organization and the Executive Director and approved by Council. Resources made available by ICPSR to nonmembers shall not be redistributed or sold to other individuals or organizations without the written agreement of ICPSR.
- **B.** Participation in ICPSR training functions or special research conferences supported solely by membership dues will be limited to students, faculty and staff from member institutions, unless exceptions are authorized by Council or the Executive Director.

Article II. Official Representatives

Each member, including each national membership and each participant in a federation, will be represented by an Official Representative chosen by the member. The Official Representative serves as the liaison between ICPSR and the member and represents the member at meetings of Official Representatives. A member may designate a second Official Representative to aid in the provision of services to the member or membership and to attend meetings of Official Representatives. Special representation arrangements for a national membership or federation may be negotiated by ICPSR Senior Staff and approved by the Council.

Article III. Council

1. Membership

The Council of the ICPSR consists of twelve persons elected by the membership. Six new Council members will be elected every two years to serve four-year terms. The Council will include the past Council Chairperson and the Associate Directors as ex-officio non-voting members.

2. Duties

- A. The Council is the Executive Committee of the membership and the governing body of the ICPSR. The Council is authorized to act on behalf of the ICPSR. The Council participates in the definition of organizational objectives and in the determination of policies to achieve those objectives. It is authorized to affiliate with other organizations for the purpose of developing organizational and fiscal arrangements of benefit to the ICPSR and its members. Actions taken on behalf of the ICPSR by ICPSR staff or staff of organizations with which the ICPSR is affiliated are subject to Council review.
- **B.** The Council will establish policies and procedures for approving activities to be carried out on behalf of the ICPSR, such as seeking grants, contracts, and other outside financial support, collaborating or participating in committees and studies, and undertaking a major data collection.
- C. The Council will establish policies regulating the participation of individuals in training programs and other activities for which limited resources preclude the simultaneous participation of all who might be interested.
- **D.** The Council will receive an annual report from the Executive Director and Senior Staff. The report will review and project ICPSR activities, revenues, and expenditures for the past year, current year, and coming year. The Council will transmit a summary of this report along with any recommendations it may have to the Official Representatives. The Council may request, and is entitled to receive, any additional information it deems useful concerning the operations and fiscal affairs of the ICPSR.

3. Meetings

The Council will normally hold three regular meetings each year. A special meeting of the Council may be called by the Chairperson, the Executive Director, six members of the Council, or other persons as agreed to by the Council. Seven members of the Council will constitute a quorum for Council action. The Executive Director, Senior Staff of ICPSR, a representative of the host organization with which the ICPSR has affiliated, and invited guests may attend open sessions of Council meetings. The Council may hold closed or executive sessions for specific purposes.

Article IV. Officers of the Council

1. Chairperson

- A. The Chairperson of the Council will be elected by the membership (see Article VII). The Chairperson will normally be nominated from among the Council members who will be serving the third year of their term and will serve a two-year term as Chairperson.
- **B.** The Chairperson is responsible for signing documents on behalf of the Council. The Chairperson will act as a liaison between the Executive Director and the Council and as a liaison between the Director of the host organization with which ICPSR is affiliated and the Council. The Chairperson will normally chair meetings of Official Representatives.
- C. The Council may appoint an acting Chairperson to serve when the Chairperson is not available to execute duties of the Chair.

2. Other Officers

The Council may designate and appoint other officers to carry out duties of the Council.

Article V. Past Chairperson of the Council

The immediate past Chairperson of the Council will serve as an ex-officio member of the Council for a period of two years.

Article VI. Associate Directors

The Executive Director, with the advice and consent of the Council, may appoint Associate Directors for specified terms. Associate Directors will serve as ex-officio members of the Council and in such other capacities as the Council designates.

Article VII. Elections

1. Nomination

A. The Nominating Committee for elections to the Council will be composed of the Council Chairperson serving as chair of the Committee, the other Council members serving in the final half of their terms, and at least two individuals not currently members of the Council designated by the Council Chairperson.

B. The Chairperson, acting on behalf of the Committee, will solicit nominations from Council members, Official Representatives, the ICPSR Executive Director and Senior Staff, Associate Directors, and the responsible executive official of the host institution. Nominees must be from member institutions. The Executive Director will gather and present to the nominating committee information on potential candidates. The Nominating Committee will present to the Official Representatives the names of a proposed Chairperson (see Article IV, Section 1) and nominees to the Council, with adequate time to allow additional nominations by Official Representatives in accord with stated procedures determined by the Council.

2. Election

A. Ballots will be mailed to those Official Representatives eligible to vote. Election to each position will be by majority vote among votes properly cast for that position.

- **B.** The Council, by two-thirds vote of its members, may remove a member from Council for cause, such as persistent non-performance of duties.
- C. Vacancies that occur on the Council or in the office of the Council Chairperson between elections will be filled through appointment by the Council.

3. Terms of Office

The newly elected Council members and the newly elected Council Chairperson will assume office at the first regular meeting following the election and will serve until the beginning of the first regular meeting after their successors have been elected.

Article VIII. Committees

The Council has the authority to create standing committees. The Chairperson, in consultation with the Council, will make appointments to standing committees. A standing committee will normally include at least one member of the Council. The Chairperson may establish and make appointments to ad hoc committees.

Article IX. Executive Director and Senior Staff

1. Positions

The chief executive officer of the ICPSR is the Executive Director. The ICPSR staff will consist of such personnel as are necessary for ICPSR to perform the activities required to fulfill its constitutionally defined purposes and meet its obligations to its membership and Council. The Executive Director may designate, with consent of Council, selected managerial, supervisory, and professional personnel as ICPSR Senior Staff. The Executive Director, and the Senior Staff through the Executive Director, are responsible to the Council for the conduct of ICPSR affairs and to the host institution for adherence to its rules and regulations.

2. Evaluation

The Chairperson and other Council members designated by the Council are authorized to participate, along with responsible officials of the host institution, in the evaluation of job performance and recommendations for merit raises and promotion of the Executive Director and the Senior Staff. The Executive Director and the Senior Staff have the right to file job and other grievances with the Council. The Council will receive and investigate such grievances and take such action as may be appropriate within its authority. These provisions do not preclude or preempt use by the Executive Director and Senior Staff of normal grievance procedures of the host institution. Upon request, the Council may participate on behalf of the Executive Director or Senior Staff in grievance proceedings of the host institution in accord with the regulations of the host institution.

3. Access to Council

The Executive Director and Senior Staff, individually and collectively, have the right to bring issues and concerns to the Council Chairperson, the chairperson of a Council committee, or an individual member of Council. If formal Council response or action is requested or required, the matter will be communicated in writing to the Chairperson. The Council may establish investigative and grievance procedures to protect individual rights and assure fair and prompt response.

Article X. Institutional Affiliations

The ICPSR Council is authorized to adopt one or more Memoranda of Agreement that affiliate the ICPSR with the University of Michigan Center for Political Studies or other host institutions. A Memorandum of Agreement may designate the host institution to serve as fiscal agent for the ICPSR. All affiliation agreements shall be reviewed by the Council at regular intervals. An affiliation with a host institution may be terminated by the Council in accord with provisions of an operative Memorandum of Agreement.

Memorandum of Agreement

Definitions:

- "ICPSR" means the Inter-university Consortium for Political and Social Research.
- "CPS" means the Center for Political Studies.
- "ISR" means the Institute for Social Research.
- "University" means the University of Michigan.
- "Director" means the Director of CPS.
- "Chairperson" means the Chairperson of the ICPSR Council.
- "Executive Director" means the Executive Director of ICPSR.

Preamble

ICPSR and CPS enter into an agreement of affiliation to assist ICPSR to provide the resources and facilities and perform the activities required to fulfill its constitutionally defined purposes and meet its obligations to its membership and elected Council. This affiliation allows ICPSR to function within CPS, in accord with the terms of this Memorandum and consistent with the Constitution and Bylaws of ICPSR, the Bylaws of CPS, and the regulations of ISR and the University.

Section I. ICPSR Personnel

1. The Executive Director

- **A.** Appointment. The Executive Director, as an employee of the University of Michigan, will be appointed by the Director, with the endorsement of the Chairperson and the advice and consent of the ICPSR Council, for a fixed term not to exceed five years. Reappointment for additional terms is possible.
- **B.** Programmatic Review. Prior to the conclusion of an incumbent Executive Director's term of office, or upon the occurrence of a vacancy in the office, a Review Committee will normally be established, appointed jointly by the Chairperson and the Director. The Review Committee will include at least one member of the primary research staff of CPS. The Review Committee will be asked to provide an assessment of ICPSR's current fiscal and administrative status, operations, and performance in carrying out its purposes as set forth in the Constitution, and to offer advice and recommendations concerning its future.
- C. Nomination Committee. After the programmatic review has been completed, the Director, in consultation and agreement with the Chairperson, will appoint a Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will include a member of the primary research staff of CPS, a member of the ICPSR Council, and a member of the ICPSR Senior Staff, and may include additional members.

To assess the leadership needs of ICPSR, the Nomination Committee will consider the report of the Review Committee and the views of ICPSR Council, ICPSR Senior Staff, and the primary research staff of CPS. If the incumbent Executive Director is willing to serve an additional term, and the Nomination Committee considers that he or she would be an effective leader for the future, the Committee may recommend reappointment. If reappointment of the incumbent Executive Director is not possible, or if the Committee believes it beneficial to consider other candidates, the Committee will prepare a statement of qualifications for the position and conduct a search for candidates in accordance with University affirmative action procedures and personnel regulations. The Nomination Committee will ask the ICPSR Council, ICPSR Senior Staff, primary research staff of CPS, and members of the social science community to suggest individuals for the position.

The Nomination Committee will report to the Director and the Chairperson. The report will include the names of the candidates who were considered, the criteria that were utilized in selecting the nominees, and the names of one or more nominees recommended for appointment.

D. Appointment Process. The Director and the Chairperson will discuss the report of the Nomination Committee with the ICPSR Council, Executive Director, and Senior Staff, the primary research staff of CPS, the Director of ISR, the Directors of other Centers within ISR, and appropriate university and departmental persons at the University. An offer of appointment requires the consent of the ICPSR Council. If the Director and the ICPSR Council have difficulty reaching agreement on the choice of candidate or terms of appointment, the good offices of the Director of ISR will

be enlisted to seek resolution. The offer of appointment will be made by the Director, with the endorsement of the Chairperson.

- E. Performance Review and Remuneration. A review of the job performance of the Executive Director in meeting the missions and goals of the ICPSR will be carried out by the Director annually or at the intervals and times provided for employees in similar positions at the University. The Director will consult with the Chairperson about the nature of the performance review, and they will agree upon the performance evaluation and proposed merit increments in salary and other changes in remuneration. In case of disagreement, the Director of ISR will be asked to mediate and, if necessary, make a decision. If the Executive Director's University appointment is split among ICPSR and other units, the Chairperson will be informed about the evaluations and proposed merit increments of the other units and will be consulted about the University's aggregate remuneration for the Executive Director.
- F. Interim Appointment. If the position of Executive Director becomes vacant, the Director, with the advice and consent of the ICPSR Council, may appoint an Interim Executive Director. An interim appointment will be for no more than one year, but such appointments may be extended for up to one additional year with the advice and consent of the ICPSR Council.

2. ICPSR Staff

- A. Appointment. ICPSR staff are formally appointed as members and employees of CPS. Appointments to the staff of ICPSR are made by the Executive Director, in conformity with normal employment regulations of CPS, ISR, and the University. Appointments are subject to the processes of review and approval by CPS that are normal for the type of appointment.
- **B.** Performance Evaluation and Remuneration. Evaluation and remuneration of ICPSR staff will be based upon the job performance of these employees in meeting the missions and goals of the ICPSR. For an individual with a joint appointment outside ICPSR, performance in meeting ICPSR responsibilities and performance in meeting responsibilities with one or more other appointments will be reviewed separately and independently. The combined results of these reviews will provide the basis for determining an aggregate performance evaluation and remuneration.

Performance reviews of the Senior Staff of ICPSR will be carried out by the Executive Director at the intervals and times provided for employees in accordance with the University of Michigan's Standard Practice Guide. The Executive Director will make available to the Director the material used for the performance reviews and will make recommendations for merit increments in salary. These will be acted upon, consistent with University guidelines, by the Director. In cases of irreconcilable differences between the Executive Director and the Director concerning staff evaluations or merit increments, the Chairperson will be consulted before the Director makes a final determination.

Performance reviews of other ICPSR staff will be carried out at the intervals and times provided for employees in accordance with the University of Michigan's Standard Practice Guide. Recommendations on performance evaluations and merit salary increments will be subject to normal procedural review by CPS.

The Executive Director and the Senior Staff have the right to file job and other grievances with the Council. The Council will receive and investigate such grievances and take such action as may be appropriate within its authority, but in no case shall such action supersede the host institution's responsibility for and authority over its employees.

Section II. Participation in CPS Governance

1. The Executive Director

The Executive Director will serve on the CPS Advisory Committee to the Director.

2. Senior Staff

Members of the Senior Staff of ICPSR may vote for and serve as the representative of professional and administrative staff persons on the CPS Advisory Committee to the Director.

Section III. Authority of the Executive Director and Senior Staff

The Executive Director and ICPSR senior staff are authorized to act on behalf of CPS and the ICPSR Council in the conduct of ICPSR activities, subject to normal regulations of CPS, ISR, and the University. Such actions will be sub-

ject to review and approval by appropriate governing mechanisms of the ICPSR Council and CPS. These governing mechanisms will be kept fully informed, with the greatest practicable timeliness, with respect to ICPSR activities.

Section IV. Fiscal Relationship

1. Fiscal Agent

CPS, acting under the authority of the Regents of the University, will serve as the fiscal agent of the ICPSR. CPS will provide administrative services necessary for the management of funds from membership dues, external grants and contracts, and other sources of income.

2. Membership Dues

Membership dues will be handled, within the fiscal regulations of the University, as expendable restricted funds that may be invested in interest-bearing accounts. The modalities for investing ICPSR funds will be determined by the appropriate administrative and fiscal officers in accordance with University investment standards with the advice of the Executive Director, the Chairperson or a Council member designated by the Chairperson and the Director.

3. Indirect Costs and Assessments

Indirect costs on membership dues will be assessed at a rate of 15 percent. Indirect costs on all other income shall be assessed according to normal CPS, ISR, and University procedures. CPS shall not assess any charges on ICPSR accounts other than those assessed on CPS programs generally.

4. Open Records

The Director will provide the ICPSR Council with an annual CPS financial statement, including past and proposed expenditures, and such related financial information as is appropriate and necessary for Council to meet its responsibilities. The Chairperson, or a Council member designated by the Chairperson, will be granted full access to CPS financial statements. The Executive Director will have full access to all CPS and ISR financial statements.

5. Discretionary Funds

ICPSR shall have access to CPS discretionary funds under the normal CPS procedures governing the use of these funds. As a member of the Advisory Committee to the Director, the Executive Director will be informed of and participate in decisions relating to the use of CPS discretionary funds.

6. Fiscal Equity

As an organizational and fiscal subunit of CPS and ISR, ICPSR shares the fiscal burdens and privileges of these bodies. CPS and ISR are committed to insuring that ICPSR shares the burdens and benefits from the privileges in a proportionate and equitable manner. Over time, ICPSR shall receive benefits commensurate with its fiscal contributions and comparable to those received by other components of CPS.

Section V. Responsibilities of CPS and ISR

1. Administrative Services

CPS will provide administrative services necessary for the management of ICPSR funds and the procedural oversight of ICPSR activities. Separate accounts will be maintained by CPS for the ICPSR Operating Budget, supported by annual membership dues and other sources, and for each grant or contract received by the ICPSR. ICPSR budgets and accounts will be subject to normal CPS administrative and supervisory requirements and to auditing procedures required by the University.

2. Space and Other Resources

CPS will facilitate the activities of ICPSR, within the limits of available space, services, and resources, in an equitable manner with respect to other activities and subunits of CPS.

3. Attendance at ICPSR Meetings

The Director or a person designated by the Director is expected to attend the open sessions of regular meetings of the ICPSR Council and meetings of the Official Representatives of member institutions. The CPS representative will not be a voting member at such meetings.

4. ISR

The ICPSR staff may use ISR facilities and resources and call upon the various units of ISR for assistance in the same manner as may Programs of CPS.

5. Resolution of Disagreements

A disagreement between ICPSR and CPS or other parties about the terms or procedures of this agreement, or about related issues, may be referred to the Chairperson for discussion. If the matter is not satisfactorily resolved, any party may request mediation by the Director of ISR.

Section VI. Amendment

The terms of this agreement may be amended by concurring majority votes of the ICPSR Council and the Program Directors of CPS. This agreement may be terminated by mutual agreement, or upon one year's notice by either party.